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ITEM NO. 1:

FY 2006 BUDGET

(C.c. 05-63)

CHAIR KANE: ... {gavel} . .. We would like to call to order the Council's Budget and Finance
Committee for Wednesday, March 30, 2005 in the Paia Community Center. Good
evening, ladies and gentlemen. At this time I'd like to allow my colleague from the
MakawaolHaikulPaia district to provide the introductions this evening. Council member
Molina.

2

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

March 30, 2005 (Paia)

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Member Kane. Good evening everyone and thank
you very much for coming out this evening to express your concerns and making your
request as it relates to our County budget. I'd like to start first with our introductions
with all the way down to my farleft. We have all the way from Hana, Maui, we have
Councilmember Bob Carroll. Seated next to him is a well-known person who virtually
needs no introduction, but we are going to introduce her anyway. Representing the
Upcountry District, Charmaine Tavares. Next to Charmaine is the Council Chairman
representing the island of Lanai, Mr. Riki Hokama. And all the way from West Maui we
have Councilmember Jo Anne Johnson. And towards my right here from Kahului, Maui,
a very active community member, we have Joe Pontanilla from the Kahului District. And
on my left is a gentleman who has Upcountry roots here on Maui, but he currently
represents the island of Molokai, Mr. Danny Mateo. And last, but not least is the
facilitator of our Budget Meeting here tonight representing the Wailuku area,
Councilmember Dain Kane.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Member Molina. And, again, ladies and gentlemen, good evening.
Thank you for being here and thank you for inviting us into the community of Kuau,
Paia. Tonight, ladies and gentlemen, we're here to hear from you on the Mayor's
proposed budget for the fiscal year 2006, which starts on July 1st of this year and it ends
next June 30, 2006. We have received that proposal on March 15th , and we as a body
have until the end of May to make final decisions on whether to keep it as is, to amend it
by adding to it or deleting from it.
So this body, right now, is in information/collection stage of our process, and we're here
to hear from you about the proposal that's before us. We will not be making any formal
decisions on this until the month of May. However, we will be deliberating and making
proposals for consideration to the full Council coming next month.
We have two more meetings after this. We have one on Lanai next Monday night, and
then we have the final hearing, the final public hearing, officially, it's going to be in the
Council Chambers and I believe that's on April 11th and that will be chaired by our
Council Chair Riki Hokama.
Keep in mind that we meet virtually every day from now until the month of May to have
the discussion on the proposed budget and that, that includes allowing anybody who has
the opportunity to come forward at the Council Chambers to come in and testify. We
have testimony open everyday for this budget so tonight is by no means the only time that
you can provide comment on the proposed budget by the Mayor.
At this time, a couple of ground rules folks, if you do have a cell phone or pager we ask
that you turn it to the off or to the silent mode at this time so that we can avoid any
unnecessary interruptions to this meeting. Tonight, we're here to listen to you. We'd
like to know your name, so if you can, please state your name for the record. We do have
a recorder going on over here, and if you do represent an organization, we'd like to know
that, as well.
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We are going to be providing you with a total of four minutes to provide your testimony.
At three minutes our staff member will let you know three minutes, and that will provide
you the time to take a minute to wrap up your comments. At four minutes, which she'll
say, if you're still going, I will interrupt you when I sense you're taking your next breath.
Okay, so and, again, keep in mind we have a lot of people here. We want to make sure
that everybody gets home at a good hour and so it's not to be rude, but we provide you
with the ground rules and that way you can prepare your comments to fit within the
four-minute time frame. With that we also have been and will continue to allow our
youngsters to come up first and so we have separated the stack. We are going to allow
our kids to come forward first, so they can get home and do the things that they need to
take care of at home, their duties, homework, etc. and sleep. And then we are going to go
in the order that you have signed up with our adults. With that, why don't we go ahead
and start off with Kaulana Ryan, and I believe Kaulana is with Kamalei Kalehuawehe,
and they are a couple of students with respects to Women in Technology and the MEDB.
If you can, please come forward ladies. Following these two folks we have Aimee
Santamaria-Molina.
MS. RYAN: Okay, Aloha '0 Kaulana Ryan ko'u inoa. Aia au rna ka papa 'ewalu rna ke kula
kaiapuni rna Kalama. Va ho'ike ka polokalamu '0 Excite Camp ia'u, ua hiki ka
'epekema ke lilo i mea le'ale'a. Va makemake au i ka 'ani'ani ho'onui 'ike i Haleakala a
ka 'ike 'ana i na hanahana i hiki ke hana i Maui. Va a'o au 0 ka ninau kiko i pono 'oe e
nianu rna ka 'epekema '0 ia no, no ke aha? Mahalo e ke kalana '0 Maui no ka lawe mai
'ana i na polokalamu e like me keia i na haumana '0 Maui.
Aloha, my name is Kaulana Ryan and I am in the 8 th grade at Kalama Intermediate
School. Excite Camp showed me that science can be fun. I like the telescopes ... at
Haleakala and being able to see the different jobs that are available here on Maui. I
learned that the most important question to ask in science is, why not? Mahalo to the
County of Maui for bringing programs like this to the students of Maui.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Ryan.
MS. KALEHVA WEHE: Aloha, my name is Kamalei Kalehuawehe, and I am an 8th grader at
lao School, and this program has allowed me to have the advantage that many girls
wouldn't. I was able to attend Introduce a Girl to Engineering Day and Excite Camp. At
Introduce a Girl to Engineering Day, we girls were given the privilege of shadowing an
experienced engineer, and I was able to shadow an engineer that worked at Maui County.
There, he showed us how to make street signs and many more things. At Excite Camp
we were allowed to visit many fields and technology. We visited Net, Ocean Net,
Monsanto and the telescope. I enjoyed and learned so much from these programs and I
know other girls would, too.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you very much. Members, any questions for these two ladies. If not,
thank you for your testimony. Aimee Santamaria-Molina, followed by Jenna Kalalau.
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MS. SANTAMARIA-MOLINA: Aloha, my name is Aimee Santamaria-Molina. I came to ask
if you would please support funding for the Maui Economic Development Board because
they are very strong in programs, such as EAST for high schools, which is like computers
and stuff, and it gets students involved with future business opportunities, as well as the
Women in Technology as they previously spoke about. I also participated in that and it
opened up a wide range of fields that I could get into, which is why I am currently
making my decision to go to UH Hilo and major in biology.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Uh-CHAIR KANE: Members? Mr. Molina, would you have any questions for the testifier?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: I have a question for the testifier.
CHAIR KANE: Excuse me, Ms. Molina, if you can, please come forward. There's a question
for you.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Good evening and thank you for testifying. I have two
questions for the testifier, Mr. Chairman. First of all, what did you learn, or what did you
get out of the Women in Technology Program? What is, what is it that you most
remember and the second question is, who is your dad?
MS. SANTAMARIA-MOLINA: I'll answer the second one first. There's my dad, Mr. Molina.
And back to the first question, what I learned? I learned that there are so many
opportunities, especially here on Maui, and I plan on living here on Maui in the future
because this is where I was raised and this is my home. And with those kind of
opportunities available, it's easier for people to come back and live here and work here
and stuff. And my most memorable visit was to, we went to Kihei Tech Center, and we
got to visit the Monsanto and all those other different corporations down there. And we
also learned that we can go there for internships over summers and stuff so it will be
easier when I come home from college.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you very much. Jenna Kalalau followed by Kevin Cooney.
MS. KALALAU: Aloha and good evening, Council Members. I am here to testify on behalf of
the MEO. The Youth Bank Americorps is a yearlong volunteer program that I have
committed to helping Maui County and the conservation agencies with the great need to
restore and protect and preserve our native plants and animals. Upon graduating from
Baldwin High School last year I wasn't sure of what I wanted to do for my future career,
but since joining the program I worked along people who really care about our
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environment and want to make a difference. With my educational award I will use it to
attend MCC to get my degree in Environmental Studies. I truly believe in MEO model
and to be in the--I am sorry, excuse me--I truly believe in the MEO model and to be part
of helping people and changing lives. Thank you for your continued support.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Kalalau. Members, any questions? Hearing none, thank you
for your testimony. Okay, Kevin Cooney. And following Kevin we have Susan White
with a couple of her kids from the Paia Youth Council. Good evening, sir.
MR. COONEY: Good evening, ladies and gentlemen. My name is Kevin Cooney. I'm part of
the Americorps Program up at Haleakala National Park, and I would just like to thank the
County Council and MEO and the Youth Bank and Donna Borge back there for all their
support. The program is awesome, in a word, because it, it's, it finally feels like I'm
doing something real as my occupation. I've lived on the island for ten years, and I've
worked in the private sector for ten years and agricultural and the visitor industry. And
finally I have a feeling like not only am I doing something that works for me, but it works
for the island as well. And I would just like to thank you for that and please continue to
support the program.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Cooney. Members, questions? Hearing none, thank you for
your testimony. If you are wondering why we have adults with kids is because kids are
with the adults, and they have to leave with the adults so we are not letting them cut on
purpose. We have Susan White and Susan is going to be testifying with Angela
Haygood, Melissa McGuire and Kai Malabon.
MS. WHITE: Good evening, I'm Susan White the Executive Director of the Paia Youth &
Cultural Center, and tonight I will be speaking first and then a couple of the Youth Center
members. Kai Malabon decided that he is going to try again next year, so he won't be
speaking.
First, I'd like to thank for support last year from the County Council and the Mayor for
the RFB process for youth centers. I do believe that it's working out really well and
much fairer system for youth centers in general, and this is our first year of experimenting
with it, and I helped set it up and it's going ... really nice, so I wanted to say thank you
for that.
Second, I do believe that there has been an increase in funding in the Mayor's budget for
youth centers this year. I am asking that the County Council support that increase in
funding at least at the amount that the Mayor has put in, and if they can squeeze in any
more that would be great. Youth centers are up against a lot of financial challenges these
days. Basically, the main one is, as with everybody, cost operations has increased
enormously in just our basic needs and power and electricity and fuel for the kids. It's
just unbelievable. Insurance, health insurance for employees is outrageous increase, 75
percent in our organization. So those costs have gone up. Another issue that we have
gone through big time this year at the Paia Youth and Cultural Center is rent, retention of
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staff, and it is getting harder and harder to have quality staff come and work at youth
centers where not only are the salaries really low, but we have yet to establish a pension
plan for any long-term members. I myself have been working there 11 years, have no
pension plan. Blaze Anderson has been working there nine years with the same story,
and these need to be addressed. At the same time, we are doing everything that we can
on our side of the fence to bring in income, self-sufficiency. Our skate park is operating
it's first year of operation not even a full year yet and it's totally self sufficient. It pays its
$7,000.00 a year liability insurance bill by itself and is also supporting two staff members
fully through the income it makes. So we are doing our part in that. Our Paia Bake Cafe
is supporting itself. It doesn't support staff yet but a lot of our money goes to program, to
feeding kids. We have a point system where they get food for good behavior and a
cooking class, so it's not self-supporting in that regard because programs more important
than business in the Cafe, but it is at least bringing in income. So I think that, you know,
we're doing the best we can. So just, I am asking that you do the best you can, too, in
giving us whatever increase that we can squeeze out of the County this year for youth
centers.
The third thing I'd like to address is the community policeman, COP. We haven't had a
community policeman in Paia, I can't remember how long now. It's been at least; okay
it's been at least six years. The Paia Youth Center is the one who headlines the
community police movement. We need a community policeman. We have all different
factions of the community involved in monthly meetings now. Paia Main Street, the
Police Department, HC&S, anybody who is involved in the town. Merchants, and if you
can do anything to try to get the community policing, I know the Federal government has
cut off a lot of the funding to community policing, but anything to help in that area we'd
really appreciate it. Okay, thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. White. Ladies, you can go ahead and adjust, just grab the
whole thing and you can bend it. There you go, you can bend it, there you go.
MS. McGUIRE: It's not my fault.
CHAIR KANE: No, no, you don't have to do it that way. There you go.
MS. McGUIRE: Hello, my name is Melissa McGuire. I am 15 years old, and this is Angie
Haygood. I am here to speak about the Paia Youth and Cultural Center. It is, I feel, a
really good opportunity for the youths because it's, it gives them a place to go. There's a
cafe, it's teaches a lot of different skills and go on field trips. It teaches like, gives
opportunities that they otherwise would not be able to receive, and if there were more
staff then we would be able to have more outings and have more opportunities for the
youths. And, yeah.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any, you don't want to say something. Any questions, Members?
Hearing none. Thank you very much ladies. Vanessa Basca. Is Vanessa here? Last
chance, Vanessa. No? Vanessa, you're here for the Paia Youth and Cultural Center.
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Okay, we'll make sure that we're on record as you supporting that. Okay? Ariel Martin.
Is Ariel here? And Ariel just grab this thing and move the whole thing like this to adjust
for you. Yeah, grab the back so you can, there you go.
MS. MARTIN: Hello, I am Ariel Martin, and I'm here for the MEO bus transportation and the
MEO is very important to me because my mom has a full-time job and I need a way to
get to my gymnastic center.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any questions, Members for Ariel? Hearing none, thank you for
your testimony. Okay, we're going to move on with, we have, I know we have some kids
but I don't have them marked down, so we're just going to move forward. Marty
McMahon. Vince McClung following.
MR. McMAHON: Good evening. I am Marty, and I am the Administrative Officer for
Community Work Day Program. I work with Jan Dapitan. I want to thank the Council
for its support of CWD during the past many years. The partnership between the County
and the program has benefited every resident in the County, and I want to review briefly
some of those benefits. Through CWD thousands of volunteers are coordinated into
work groups which tackle issues like highway beautification, shoreline protection,
roadside and beach cleanups, bulk item pick up and derelict vehicle removal. The value
of 20,000 volunteer hours so far this fiscal year is approximately $283,000 to the County.
We're run five Countywide cleanups, as well as dozens of products, projects like old
Maui High School restoration, and we are on our second Americorps team. That's a
rarity for us. It's not the one that was up here earlier in Haleakala. This is something that
was supposed to go, a team was supposed to go to Kauai but was turned down in Kauai,
and they offered it to us. So we are supporting them as well. They're working in Kahana
and Honokowai Valleys, native species restoration, as well as in Puunene. We've
recycled more than a thousand gallons of paint with the paint exchange. We've gotten rid
of a thousand more gallons properly and our Compu Swap is almost a victim of its own
success. Last January alone we recycled almost five dozen computer systems to schools,
non-profits and children whose parents would not otherwise be able to afford computers,
and we shipped to California for recycling, not quite 70 tons of computer equipment.
That's 70 tons of equipment, which our volunteers processed and repaired or stacked and
packed in 36 hours. We will present to the County this fiscal year the system through
which citizens can adopt County roadways. We would do this in June. Also, we had a
grant, which called on us to remove 240 derelict vehicles. We removed 307 derelict
vehicles with the same amount of money. Recently, we partnered with the Department of
Education, and we now have working control of the building across the street from our
headquarters. It is what we call our Education Extension Building and we have already
held classes there. Our focus and a strong thrust of our program next year is to expand
the education efforts by having training programs for residents and teachers on-site which
they can bring back to their students in the classroom in working laptop computers. The
programs will cover litter control, how landfills work, what recycling means, on and on.
We are all well aware of the challenges this County faces. Litter, rubbish, debris, bulk
items, derelict vehicles to name just a few, and in the next fiscal year CWD looks forward
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to partnering with the County on beautification, community improvement, education,
adopt-a-roadway system and other programs which we will all need to work on together
to meet what many in our community feels is a crisis. A crisis we at CWD feels we are
more than able to handle if properly addressed. Further, we ask for no increase in
funding to help accomplish this. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. McMahon. Members, any questions? Hearing none, thank you
for your testimony. Next we have Vince McClung. Following Mr. McClung we have
Kat Lui.
MR. McCLUNG: Good evening, Chairman Hokama, Council Members. I appreciate the fact
that you're here this evening coming to the North Shore to hear what we view as the
needs of this side of the island and I want to say also that I really appreciate this entire
process that you go through year after year to take good care of us as your people. I just,
I really do appreciate that.
My name is Vince McClung. I'm the Vice-Chairman of the Paia Main Street
Association, also serve on the Board of Directors of the Tri-Isle Main Street Resource
Center. I do want to come tonight and first of all say thank you for your generous
support in last years' budget for our organization. We view what we do as Main Street
volunteers really critical to who we are as an island family, as an ohana, because of our
historic towns and the value that they have to us. When we consider the, the family roots
and for which most of you have even on this side of the island some of you. The historic
value of Paia, Makawao, a new town coming on board with us in Haiku, Wailuku here on
Maui. Especially these towns are critical for us as we present who we are as an island to
tourists and guests that come to our island it, by so many great numbers.
I guess I would say to you that the value of this organization speaks to what is
accomplished. I have a letter that was posted to Councilman Hokama of February 28 th
that I'd like to read just a portion of it. It's from our Paia Main Street Association. I
think it states well really what our desire is for the ongoing funding of the Main Street
organization. It says, Paia town on the North Shore are on the cusp of changes that will
highly impact our community. It's vitally important that there is a formal avenue for
volunteers of our town to review potential projects and express their thoughts and
concerns early enough in the County processes to make a difference on any given project.
Also, it's equally important that we continue to create surveys and studies for projects
that assist the County in smart growth planning that support our community plans. Some
of the projects completed to date are the Paia Community Plan, a small town code, and
the business capacity study. I believe you still have that in some of these projects before
you. The latter study was very enlightening regarding existing zoning capacity for future
commercial growth here on the North Shore, especially Paia, and it also addresses the
community wants and needs for the commercial center of Paia in a bigger picture, in a
big picture manner. Continuation is the key to implementation and constant focus on
protecting our towns. Our request to you as a Main Street organization is for $225,000 in
this upcoming year. You've got, you'd understand that as small town members in the
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overall Tri-Isle Main Street Resource Center, our funding is pro rata in that we receive
between 12 and 18 percent of that budgeting money per each individual member town.
The Tri-Isle Main Street Resource Center is really indispensable to us as volunteers.
Jocelyn Perreira all of you know well and the work that she does to come alongside the
County and our small towns to see that these are historic places are preserved and well
treated. She and her staff work tirelessly to support us as volunteers and feel the
partnership very strongly. We really couldn't do all that we are able to do without her
help and her staff's help. Thank you. I just appreciate it so much the opportunity to
speak before you today. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. McClung. Members, any questions for the testifier? Hearing
none, Mr. McClung, thank you. Next to testify is Kat Lui. Following Ms. Lui we have
Chris Brosius.
MS. LUI: Good evening. Aloha and thank you again for coming and listening to all of our
thoughts and our needs. We really appreciate it. My name is Kat Lui, and I work for
East Maui Watershed Partnership. We are an organization that is dedicated to protecting
and preserving the native Hawaiian forest and watersheds of East Maui and this
watershed encompasses a hundred thousand acres of land on the windward side of
Haleakala. It is owned and managed by seven of our partners, which includes the County
of Maui and the Department of Water Supply.
We provide this much-needed
environmental preservation work entirely through grants. We thank you for including us
in the budget last year, and we encourage you to continue to support our efforts. As you
heard last week at Pukalani's County testimonies, East Maui Watershed Partnership
works hard in the field to manage our natural resources and to protect them. Our boys fly
in to remote wet jungle to camp for days at a time, staying away from their family and
their newborn babies to build fence and remove invasive species, to protect the future of
our community, and our community thanks them for this. But our natural resource
management is only a part of what we do. East Maui Watershed Partnership has an
outreach program that provides free of charge to any teacher, any club, any senior citizen
group who wants it. We provide a hands-on, and fun educational opportunity to learn
about watersheds, what they are, how they work and why the East Maui Watershed is our
source of life, our source of biodiversity and our source of Hawaiian culture. Through
our class presentations, through our interpretive hikes and to cloud forest with native
species, through our watershed building exercises, which are really messy but really fun
for the kids, we teach our keiki the future konohiki or land stewards of our island. We
help these keiki find a part of themselves in the native Hawaiian forest. We encourage
them to perhaps make it a part of their career when they grow up, and we hope that they,
too, will love the land that cares for them. We encourage them to do the same for their
land. You can't put a price on that. Thank you for your support.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms Lui. Members, any questions? Hearing none, Ms. Lui, thank
you. Chris Brosius.
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MR. BROSIUS: Good evening, Council. It's a pleasure to be here tonight. My name is
Chris Brosius, and I am the Watershed Coordinator for the West Maui Mountains
Watershed Partnership.
Our organization is responsible for the protection and
management of 53,000 acres of forested watershed within the conservation district of
West Maui. Our work involving the control of feral ungulates, such as pigs, goats and
deer, and invasive weeds is vital to sustaining the native Hawaiian forest. This is a forest
that is developed as a system over millions of years to supply Maui perfectly with fresh
water. Without the control of ungulates and weeds we can expect a reduction in the
forest cover. Over time this will reduce the recharge capability of the island's aquifers
and its fresh water lens. We can also expect an increase in water born diseases, such as
leptospirosis, angiardia from the presence of these animals in the watershed. Their
digging and their browsing accelerates erosion leading to further sediments and nutrients
in our mountain streams, which ultimately result in such degradation as, you know, the
collapse of our ocean reef systems. The West Maui watershed produces 29 billion
gallons of water annually for the support of our West/Central and South Maui
communities, industries and agriculture. I understand that Paia community is also a
recipient of West Maui water and that's one of the reasons why I'm speaking here today.
As our forest degrades so does our quality, the quality of our water, the quality of our
lives and the resilience of our island economy that is founded on that water. I am here to
ask your support for two budget items that are critical to the partnership's ability to
protect the island's water supply at its source within the forest. The first is for $75,000 as
requested by the ... (CHANGE TAPE) ... by the Department of Water Supply for water
resource conservation, prevention of contamination and degradation of water quality.
The second is for $200,000 as requested in the budget presented by the Office of
Economic Development for general watershed protection. That's an amount that would
be shared by all the watershed partnerships in the County of Maui. As an example of
what we are able to do with County funds, in 2003 the partnership received $64,000 from
the County. As a result we were able to build four strategic fences, one of our primary
tools in watershed preservation on the ridges above the Waihee and lao Valleys. These
fences prevent access of ungulates from moving higher into the watershed, thus
protecting thousands of acres in securing the areas water resource qualities. In addition,
we were able to monitor with that money--excuse me--in addition, we were able to
monitor five transects with that money, which were essential to the critical review of our
management efforts to route the watershed landscape. The data was collected. The data
that was collected is fundamental to giving us direction and the ability to solicit other
targeted funds. County funds have made it possible to satisfy cost-share requirements of
other grants contributing from the State, Federal and private sources. County funds are
important to show that we have credibility within our own community when approaching
these granting agencies. Future funding received from the County budget could be
applied in much of the same way as other, as in areas in Kokomo and Waikapu and
Kahakuloa.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Brosius, you've reached four minutes.
MR. BROSIUS: Oh, I'm sorry.
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CHAIR KANE: That's okay.
MR. BROSIUS: I thought I would get a warning at three
CHAIR KANE: We did, we gave you the warning but you were going pretty good there.
MR. BROSIUS: Okay, sorry about that.
CHAIR KANE: Anyway-MR. BROSIUS: Thank you very much.
CHAIR KANE: Hang on now, we might have questions. Any questions for Mr. Brosius?
Hearing none, thank you very much for your testimony. It's appreciated. And I know, I
know, we see some kids still here.
We're going to get right now to them.
Vernette Tolentino and then right behind Vernette we have some of the kids that are
going to be coming up. So Shain a, Destiny, Kalani, Jamie, Ryan. If you folks can come
forward please. Good evening, Ms. Tolentino. You can go ahead.
MS. TOLENTINO: Aloha, Council Members. I am Vernette Tolentino, parent, speaking behalf
of the Haiku Boys & Girls Club. I want to thank the Boys & Girls Club for being there
for my two daughters, Shaina and Shelby. Having the Boys & Girls Club is very
important because I'm a working parent, working having three jobs. Without the Boys &
Girls Club, there'll be nothing and, you know, I want to just come out and support them
by speaking on behalf of them. And I wanted to thank, mahalo for you guys for being so
supportive for Haiku Boys & Girls Club. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Tolentino. Shaina, come forward please.
MS. TOLENTINO: Hi, my name is Shaina Tolentino, and I'm from Haiku School, Haiku Boys
& Girls Club. Boys & Girls Club is important to me because to not do drugs and to be
safe. Also, it gives me and other kids a place to have fun, playing games and meeting
more friends, and I'll want to thank MEO. They help the kids get to and from the Club.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Destiny.
MS. MAHAULU: Aloha, I am Destiny Nohopa(?) Mahaula and I'm, and the Boys & Girls Club
of Haiku is important to me because it keeps kids out of trouble. We have a lot of
activities and we started a library. But even though we have a lot of activities, we still
have financial problems. We need to pay for the snacks for the snack bar, computers,
games, books for the library and pay the workers. Even we get money, even if we got
money from the snack bar, we still need more money. If there was no Girls Cl..., Boys &
Girls Club, I'd be at home getting fatter. Also, I would like to thank you for getting us a
van to get us to the field trips.
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CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Destiny. Kalani Corniel.
MR. CORNIEL: The Haiku Boys & Girls Club would need more funding because some of the
kids are getting bored and they, and I've gone around asking and at least a quarter of
them have said some kids have nowhere else to go after school and like Destiny said,
they'd be staying home. A lot of kids get hungry while they're at the Boys & Girls Club,
but the club is running out of snacks from the loss of money. Kids are, I think that if kids
get bored they might get in trouble from other people around the neighborhood. This is
important to the workers because the workers can hire new staff members cause they
never get breaks. And the Club is a place where me and my friends can have fun, but the
fun that we have is getting old. I want to thank the MEO for helping the kids get home
from the Club. And I would like to read what another member wanted to say but couldn't
be here, Kendra Foley. "This Boys & Girls Club has a huge impact on my life. I know
that it sounds corny but it's true. This is by far the best Club I have ever seen or been to.
It, it's my, it might not be the biggest, but it makes you feel right at home. I did not really
enjoy much about it. Here are some few words that I have to say about how much I like
it. I would probably go home and do nothing but watch TV."
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Kalani. Jamie Hall.
MS. HALL: Hi, I'm Jamie. The Club is important to me because it keeps me out of trouble. It
keeps me away from drugs and violence, and it keeps me busy with all the activities that
the staff do. Like art, games, flag football, a lot of and a lot of other things. And also I
made my, I made a lot of my friends there. At the Club it is like my second home. If the
Club never exists I'd probably be at home getting into a lot of trouble. Some kids would
get into trouble with drugs and alcohol. I am so glad that I have the Haiku Club to keep
me out of it. I would also like to read to you what other members wanted to say about the
Club but couldn't be here. Rachel. "The Haiku Boys & Girls Club is important to me
because without it, I would probably be getting into fights and drugs. The Boys & Girls
Club encourages me to stay out of fights and drugs. It also keeps me trying to get good
education, that I need to do the best that I can. I wouldn't have a life because I met all
my friends there when I've arrived here. I met people who helped me and encourage me.
The staff is like a second family to me." Autumn Gibson. "The club is important to me
because it keeps me away from drugs and violence. Everyday I look forward to go to
school so after school I can go there and hang out with all my friends. The workers there
are great. They teach you a lot and involve you in activities, like flag football, baseball,
basketball and volleyball. These are some sports that we have at our Club. We also have
computers, drama, movies, down sounds evolution. These are things I love doing at the
Club. This Club also can help you meet friends. After school at 3:30 I go into power
hour and Aunty Joy helps me with my homework and I usually get good grades. On
Thursdays, Aunty Joy teaches us to cook different things. I have learned a lot from
Aunty Joy about cooking. On Monday and Wednesdays, we do art in the computer room.
We paint light switches, plates; we make photo albums; we also sculpt with clay. So
thanks to our Unit Director Gina, all these things happened. If this Club wasn't here, I
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probably would be on drugs. I might even be in jail for doing something bad because I
would be bored. Me and my friends probably would steal a car and rob a bank, but
because there is a Boys & Girls Club, I don't have to worry about anything. I would also
like to thank the MEO for taking people home when they need it. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Jamie. Ryan Bantillan.
MR. BANTILLAN: Hello, my name is Ryan B antill an. I'm a sophomore at King Kekaulike.
I'm one of the oldest kids that still go to the Boys & Girls Club in Haiku. I go there
because it's fun. I get to meet new people. I get to watch all the little kids grow up, and
some of the reasons why it's fun there because we have cool games, cool staff, and it's
just fun being there. And if there is no Club there, I'd probably out, be hanging with the
wrong people, doing dumb things and that's why it's good that it's there. And I'd like to
read somebody else's one that they wrote but they couldn't be here. They put, "I think
the Boys & Girls Club is important to me because our parents have to work, and we have
a place to go when they're working and because they can't pick us up on time when we
get out of school. I can also do my homework, also do--and, wait--they're also like my
family to me and what I would do if the Boys & Girls Club wasn't there; I would have a,
I wouldn't have a happy life, because the Club is a fun place to be at. And I'd also like to
thank the MEO for taking the kids to and from school and to the Club." Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ryan. We also have Nancy-MS. CIULLO ... Ciullo.
CHAIR KANE: Ciullo. Thank you, Nancy.
MS. CIULLO: Hi.
CHAIR KANE: Good evening.
MS. CIULLO: Hi, my name is Nancy Ciullo, and I'm a volunteer at the Boys & Girls Club. I
have volunteered a couple of times there and I really, really enjoy it. The kids are taught
rules, respect and manners, just preparing them for the outside world. Boys & Girls Club
is a safe and supportive haven for kids where they make choices for themselves about
what they'd like to do. They're treated as adults who can make decisions based on how
they feel. All the activities planned are fun, educational and interactive. The kids are
asked to respect boundaries taught and established by their parents, and, therefore, know
what's expected of them. If the kids overstep the boundaries or break any Club rules they
are disciplined in an appropriate manner. Having a place such as the Boys & Girls Clubs
keeps kids off the streets and out of trouble. They are taught real life skills like cooking
and arts and crafts, not fighting. They play Twister and ping pong versus violent video
games. They are taught to be creative and express themselves positively. The kids are
learning how to respect each other and their elders. They are active in learning, not
sitting in front of a computer where there are predators. They're not sitting in their
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basement and learning how to build bombs and blow up schools. It's great for our
children to have a place to go where they know they are safe, where their friends are, and
where they have staff members to turn to as counselors, friends, guidance and advice. I
feel it's very important to keep supporting the Boys & Girls Club to prepare all of us,
adults and children alike, for a safer and peaceful future. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you very much. Members, are there any questions for any of our
speakers this evening? Hearing none, thank you very much. Hi, your name is, ma'am?
MS McLAIN: Gina.
CHAIR KANE: Gina. Thank you. Gina, why don't you go ahead and step up. Gina McLain.
MS. McLAIN: Hello. Good evening, my name is Gina McLain. I'm the Unit Director at the
Haiku Boys & Girls Club. The first thing I'd like to do is pass out some photos, some
recent photos of some activities we do at the Boys & Girls Club, just to kind of give you
a visual of the things that kids participate in. I would like to tell you quickly about how I
became an employee of the Boys & Girls Club. When we moved here from Alaska three
years ago, my daughter was looking for something to keep her active during the summer.
And she was told by a friend about the Boys & Girls Club, that they had some activities,
weight training class. And she started going down there and she would come home and
tell me about the great things that was going on at the Club; the cool staff, the activities
that were happening. And when I moved here, the career that I used to do up in Alaska
was something I did not want to return to. I wanted to possibly try something different.
Try something new. I was a coach for ten years and had volunteered my time towards
youth activities, so I was kind of looking for something along those lines. So when my
daughter came home and told me about the Boys & Girls Club, I thought, well, I'll
volunteer there, put a resume in, maybe do a part-time job. And I ended up landing the
Unit Director's position. A little bit more than I expected to work, but at the same time
now, being in there and being part of the Club, I would have it no other way. I couldn't
limit to myself to being only a part-time worker there. I absolutely love my job there.
As far as what's going on in our Club, our Club has already exceeded its County goal as
far as membership. We were expected to meet 220 members by the end of the fiscal
year. We passed that goal in December. We currently have 243 members registered at
our Club. We average about 70 kids a day and out of the 70 kids a day we, the Club has
been basically getting an average of about six to ten new members a month. So we have
steadily been increasing in our numbers every month. What has happened as a result that
I was seeing was that we outgrew our Club quickly. We didn't have the space, we didn't
have tables, we didn't have chairs and when it comes to power hour, which I'm sure you
guys already know by now, is our study hall, I had kids on the floor doing their
homework. And so we had to look at alternatives for space, and the way that we did that
is we turned what we were using as a storage room into a teen room to kind of give them
their own place to be away from the younger kids. And we also went to Parks & Rec.
and we utilized the small conference room up there three days a week. So now the kids
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are able to do more activities like drama class, dance class, things that we did not have
the room available to do. So because of Parks & Rec. cooperation, the kids are now able
to do other activities. Three minutes?
CHAIR KANE: You have another minute.
MS. MCLAIN: I have another minute. Okay, so basically right now our, the thing we're
struggling the most with is staffing. Our staffing; I have one staff member that works 30
hours, another that works 19, another that works 11. We're open to the kids 26 hours a
week. So when you have a staff member that works 11 hours a week and 19 hours a
week and one 30, you're not quite having the staffing levels you need when you have an
average of 70 kids a day, and that's kind of the obstacle that I'm faced with right now.
Ideally for me, four staff would be great, 104 man-hours, and right now I have 60 manhours to run my Club. Even with these challenges, though, the staff continues to strive to
make the Club a fun environment for the members. This is due in large part because they
genuinely enjoy working with the kids. As for me, these obstacles they, they don't deter
me. I still landed my dream job, the job that I was always searching for as far as giving
me personal satisfaction, and made me feel that I really contributed to my community.
Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. McLain. Members, any questions? Hearing none, thank you
very much for your testimonies this evening.
Thank you.
Francis Quitazol.
Francis Quitazol and following Francis is Tony Fisher.
MR. QUITAZOL: Good evening everybody. My name is Francis Quitazol, Assistant Natural
Resource Manager with The Nature Conservancy here on Maui. Born and raised here on
Maui, grew up in HaikulKokomo area. My career in conservation started in the early
'90s with the State of Hawaii, DLNR. From there, after high school, went on to finish
school elsewhere, you know, get the degree, the palapala. Mom always said that going
help you advance and open up opportunities so, and she was right. And after that went
on to Volcano National Park, continued in resource management with the fence crew.
Then another opportunity opened at U.S. Forest Service in the mainland. I was lucky
enough to go and work all over the country, then to Haleakala National Park, and then
finally here with The Nature Conservancy. With the Forest Service I worked from
California to the Carolinas, from Idaho to New Mexico, so basically all over and I've seen
forest, beautiful forest, mind blowing. But nothing could compare to the mountain, the
forest, the watershed over here in Hawaii. So special and unique, but I never knew the
connection that I had to that until I worked, came back home and worked at the National
Park. I was fortunate enough to work with some of the legends up in Haleakala. The
guys who started it all, and they opened my eyes to it and they taught me that, that you
cannot learn what they learned in school books. And, and that what is so special about
the resources is that, I mean as Hawaiians it defines us. It's what helps us. It's what gives
us our culture. Example of that is the huge Koa trees that was used to build those
voyaging canoes, as something special about us. It's the resources give us an identity and
from that I took that and that was like my connection. I was like, oh wow, right on.
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Thanks for that. So now I just involve myself full on into it and working in conservation
is my career. Therefore, the forest, the mountain, the watershed gives me personally and
gives us all more than just life giving water. It provides us with an identity. Currently,
The Nature Conservancy has, you know, many fencing projects. We're partners with the
State, the National Park, Haleakala Ranch, East Maui Watershed Partnership. We even
work on West Maui doing their watershed so funding is always needed and always
appreciated and very necessary for us. Helicopters cost money, fencing materials, so just
with that in mind, which is basically, much mahalos to you guys for you guys' support
and being our partners in this, and we look forward to you guys' continued support.
Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Quitazol. Hang on. Any questions, Members? And only the
brief comment that moms are usually right. Thank you for your testimony. Next to
testify is Mr. Tony Fisher and then we have Chris Grasa.
MR. FISHER: My name is Tony Fisher. Sixty-two years ago I joined the Boys Club. I did it to
play basketball. And 11 years later, I was playing semi-pro ball in Boston Garden. So if
you can support that, it's wonderful. Anyway, I want to talk about what's going on from
a, from a budget standpoint. I went back and from the last one and I read a little bit of the
budget and one of the things I noticed in there is you're going to spend forty... Sorry.
The Mayor has proposed $42 million in bonds. As you all know, we have proposed a tax
reform concept that will put somewhere between 15 and 20 million dollars in the first
year in the pockets of the County of Maui, and I look at that and I think, now, I know a
little bit about when I go do a credit card and then I pay it off over 20 years. Did that cost
a lot more money, than if I paid cash for it in the first place. And it really puzzles me as
to why we don't take a look at saying, why don't we pay cash for some of these things
now, rather than bonding them because I think it's a far better way.
I have one other item, which I wrote in at that last minute, which is kind of in my notes as
1 (a) and what it is, is when I first moved here, I went through the process of getting my
trash bill. I don't know if you've ever done that, but you have to go down and they won't
do it over the phone. You gotta go down and make out a bunch of paperwork, and I said,
gee, why don't you put the trash bill on the water bill. It all goes in the same place. And
if you did it monthly, it would be $12 a month rather than going through all the
machinations of doing this, and they said, it's not a good idea. And I said, why? And
they said, you wouldn't understand. I don't understand. Think of the money that could
be saved just by taking that whole process, cause part of this is obviously to cut expenses
where we can, not just spend more money. And I would ask the County Council perhaps
to go look into why you cannot put the trash collection at $12 a month or $24 every two
months or however you wanna go do it rather than ... going through this laborious
process of sending it out twice a year, which is a pain in the neck to the people. It's a
pain in the neck to do it. And it all goes in, cause I wrote the check recently and it said
Department of Finance. Department of Finance. I thought this is going into the same
place.
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Anyway, also I live in Kihei and please put in a budget item somewhere for something
called cleaning up Kamaole Point Park. It is a trash collection. We had a meeting not too
long ago with Council member Johnson and Council member Michelle Anderson in which
we met with the police and everyone else. And one of the things that needs to be done
over there--did you say three?
MS. NAKATA: Yes.
MR. FISHER: Thank you. One of the things that was there was that there's tree trunks that have fallen
down that have not been removed. There's grass that hasn't been cut. It is the only park to the
best of my knowledge in all of Maui, out of 150, that does not have regular maintenance. And
that seems like a crime because it happens to be between Kamaole II and Kamaole III. And
people actually walk up the street to get around it cause they think this is not a good place to be.
And last, but not least, I would like to ask the County Council, we have submitted a proposal, a
suggestion, an idea for an ordinance, and I would be, I would really love to hear somebody say
when that concept is going to be a item for the County. Thank you all.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any questions? Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER T AV ARES: Your idea, proposal, recommendation regarding what?
MR. FISHER: The tax reform.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay, thank you. You never said that.
MR. FISHER: Well, he wouldn't let me. He said four minutes.
CHAIR KANE: Any questions, Members, for Mr. Fisher?
MR. FISHER: Thank you all for-CHAIR KANE: Hearing none, thank you-MR. FISHER: Thank you all for-CHAIR KANE: --thank you for your testimony. Chris Grasa followed by Bill Tavares.
MR. GRASA: Aloha, good evening everybody. This is Lulu my daughter and I'm Chris Grasa,
I am a Field Tech Leader with the East Maui Watershed Partnership, and I just want to
thank you for last year's money and continue supporting us because what we're doing is
very, very important. And this doesn't stop with my lifetime but with hers, and so on,
and so on. And yeah, we're ahead of the game cause we still got a pretty intact forest up
there, but it needs to stay like that. And like Ms. Molina said, she would like to stay here
on the island and have a job so it's very, very important and if you haven't been up to the
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native forest, I encourage you to do it and also the public. It's a very powerful place that
we need to keep like that, so thank you very much. Aloha.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Grasa. Members, any questions? Hearing none, thank you
very much. Bill Tavares followed by Katherine and Lawrence Pagaduan, Pagaduan.
MR. TAVARES: Where's that lectern? It wasn't here last year, it's not here this year. That's all
right. I am Bill Tavares; Chairman of COMET, the Committee for More Equitable
Taxation, since its inception in 1988 and a resident of Kuau on Tavares Bay for 83 years.
The present administration has made several statements, which COMET strongly refutes.
Such as claiming that the answer to all the concerns property owners have about the
frightening rapidly escalating assessments is the Circuit Breaker. Just 930 or so property
owners have benefited from this Circuit Breaker to date. The Administration has also
said that homeowners whose assessments are rising so rapidly should be happy that they
can sell their property for a great deal of money. I consider that an insult, an insult.
Many of us long-time residents want to pass on, as I already have, our property to family
members without exposing them to the temptation to sell their inheritance for huge sums
of money. The new Vikings, oh, I have to watch my decorum here. I'm sorry. The new
Vikings--don't count that, please ... --the new Vikings are patrolling the north shore
seizing choice property that they covet, then they sell it for a huge property, move on
further up the coastline for further conquest, even sometimes moving further inland,
leaving in their wake angry and concerned property owners uncertain about their futures.
The Administration also insists that the present property tax system is not broken. Not
broken. Listen to this horrifying statistic. My lot, 89 percent increase in land assessment
in one year from $347,400 to $657,200. It's an interior lot. Not broken? That's broken.
My son's lot, 89 percent increase in land assessment in one year from $1,112,900 to
$2,109,900. Not broken? Finally, my neighbor's lot, 88 percent increase in assessment
in one year, $2,823,200 to $5,332,600. Not broken?
Any tax system that more than doubles the value of your property in two years or less is
not only broken, it is unjust, immoral and untenable.
I shocked some
people ... (CHANGE TAPE) ... when I said that the present intolerable situation could
lead to rioting in the streets. Well, did you watch what happened on Molokai? It took a
special squad of police officers to restrain them when that, when that new Viking sold his
property for a huge profit. You saw the residents of Molokai showing their anger and
disgust. By the way, I phoned Walter Ritte last week, and I had not often agreed with
what he stands for, but I phoned him. I congratulated him and his group for standing up
to the invaders. He is sending me information very shortly on what his group plans to do
to discourage future such sales. Lance Holter recently condemned this kind of
speculation. Thank you very much, Lance. You're a realtor we admire. Finally, in
conclusion, this Council has made really substantial improvements, and we admit that, to
our antiquated tax system, but unless a major reform occurs, Maui's famous lamp of
aloha will get dimmer and dimmer until the aloha lamp is finally extinguished. Thank
you.
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CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Tavares. Members, do you have any questions for
Mr. Tavares? Hearing none, thank you very much for your testimony. Katherine and
Lawrence Pagaduan.
MR. PAGADUAN: Top of the evening I'm Lawrence Pagaduan. I live here and aloha from Paia
town. My request is from MEO, small little business, starting my small little business. I
really appreciate that because I had to go to class and learn now to build stuffs and like
the MEO, that's my crafts. And that is a Paia gun that I'm really treasure because us Paia
up here, the old timers, dive with that. Okay, they know how to dive with that and it's not
a toy, and it's made out of koa and I do all hardwood. So that's my small little business,
but through MEO business, I really thank MEO because they taught me a lot how to run
my business. Lawyers, employee, you know, and I really like them because you learn
more about their, their way of small little business. And I really thank you for coming up
and that's my small little business there. So I was trying to keep up the old tradition
because all the old timers all passed on. So that's what I'm doing in Paia. Thank you.
This is my wife, Katherine.
MS. PAGADUAN: As you can imagine, most bankers look at something like this and say,
you're out of your mind. When you are not making a profit on a business but barely
meeting costs, there's very few places you can go for education, for help, for financial
support. I sincerely hope that you continue to support MEO's small business because
there are a lot of crafters out there that are thinking maybe they would like to join a
business, or be a business, but they're scared. Without a small place that you can go to
that will bring you in and make you a part of the business community, you don't have any
chances to start. He's been working since he was in high school. Without MEO it would
still be something he makes for his nephews and no one would see it. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. and Mrs. Pagaduan. Any questions, Members, for the
testifiers? Hearing none, thank you very much. If no more space in your trunk, my car
stay right by the rubbish can, Mr. Pagaduan. Tracy Rieder following Ms. Rieder-Reader, Rieder, I'm sorry. Rieder, thank you. We have Claire Sheehan.
MS. RIEDER: Aloha and thank you for your time this evening. I can appreciate you getting
some late evenings at this time. I'd like to introduce myself. I'm Tracy Rieder and I'm
the Development Director for the Maui Humane Society. I'd like to speak on behalf of
the Humane Society, as well as a citizen. As a citizen I never really connected the dots of
our communities animal issues until I became a member of the Maui Humane Society. I
never really understood what over-population truly meant. I never really knew that our
community could be at risk in safety, and I never really understood the level of cruelty
issues that we might have here. So as of today, I am well educated on those things and
my eyes are wide open, and I see this challenge of solving the problem as a strategic and
long-term solution. I have discovered a considerable amount of fundraising efforts have
been applied to our general fund deficit. If we are able to focus our fundraising efforts on
programs like building a self-sustaining educational outreach program, this would help us
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achieve our long-term goals of eliminating homeless pets in Maui. By providing the
requested funding to the Maui Humane Society, the County of Maui will allow our
shelter to strengthen our community outreach programs, which complement and enhance
our County services. Ultimately, this could decrease our need for your support. I also
wanted to bring this up and make sure I explained, I've been with the Humane Society for
six months, and I have to say that your past support and wonderful working relationship
are pretty much legendary at our shelter. I've heard a lot about it, and we appreciate that
and are trul y grateful for that.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Rieder. Members, any questions for Ms. Rieder? Hearing
none, thank you-MS. RIEDER: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: --for your testimony. Claire Sheehan. She'll be followed by Paula Ambre.
MS. SHEEHAN: Aloha, Council Members, staff, and other interested citizens. My name is
Claire Sheehan, and I am the Director of Operations at the Maui Humane Society. I'd
like to thank this Council for their continued support and also their recognition of the
vital services our agency provides to our citizens. By becoming working partners the
Maui Humane Society and the County can continue to effectively address the animal
welfare, as well as the animal nuisance needs of our community. This year's allocation
can provide us the ability to gain back lost ground in the last two years by allowing us to
once again provide seven day a week services to our community. The increase covers the
manpower cost to open the shelter on Sunday and Monday. It provides for office
personnel to staff the phone lines and dispatch animal control officers. Presently, this is
being provided only, we are only providing emergency services, and we are being
dispatched through the Maui Police Department. This is a burden they have taken on as
necessity, as they are the only agency guaranteed to respond. I've been on the frontlines
at the shelter for 11 years, and I can assure you many situations are upgraded to an
emergency if that's the only way the caller thinks they can get something done. I'm sure
the police dispatchers, indeed, the whole Police Department would see returning the
shelter to a seven day a week operation a benefit. The budget also provides for staff to
cover shelter operations. Animals once again can be reported missing and possibly even
reclaimed on the same day. As a pet owner, I can't imagine losing a member of my
family and being helpless for 48 hours when I hear that message, aloha, you've reached
the Maui Humane Society, we are now closed. As the Director of Operations, I can
testify to the over-crowded conditions we encounter on a daily basis. Due to the fact that
we are operating under the County ordinance, which requires we hold stray animals for a
48-hour period that we are open to the public before we are allowed to place them up for
adoption. To give you an example, a dog left at our shelter on a Saturday evening can't
be placed up for adoption until the following Thursday. By reopening seven days a
week, we can improve conditions and also reduce costs by keeping, by reuniting animals
with their owners in a better fashion and also to get them a chance to get adopted sooner.
It also provides for an Assistant Manager to oversee the operations in my absence cause
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I'm only one person, and as much as I love my job, seven days a week could lower my
enthusiasm to get up and embrace the day. I mentioned earlier that I've been with this
organization for 11 years. Now that might seem a long time, but I'm here to tell you, we
have many employees who have been with us longer and we're all getting older. This
year's budget provides the funding to begin a retirement program for our employees. I
know of no other non-profit agency of our size and scope of services provided to the
public that's lacking a retirement plan. The longevity of our staff is one of the keys to our
success. The budget also will provide the necessary funds to continue our focus on
spay/neuter. This year our SNIP funds, which is the County sponsored program, ran out
at eight months into the fiscal year and right at the peak season for pregnancy in our
feline population. Next year's increase will allow us to provide the needs for the Maui
island residents, as well as providing funds for Molokai's own much needed programs. I
thank you, again, for your time this evening and to once again take this opportunity to
thank you for understanding the agency I represent.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Sheehan. Members, any questions? Member Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Hi.
MS. SHEEHAN: Hi.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Who feeds the animals on, when you're closed?
MS. SHEEHAN: When we are closed we have staff members, so what we are stretched to do is
our five-day a week. We have everybody working 40 hours a week with staggered, and I
took care of them on Easter Sunday.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Thank you.
MS. SHEEHAN: You're welcome.
CHAIR KANE: Any more questions, Members? Hearing none, thank you, Ms. Sheehan. We
have Paula Ambre, and then we will be taking a brief recess, about ten minutes, so that
we can take care of our personal needs. Ms. Ambre.
MS. AMBRE: Thank you. Committee Chair and Council Members, aloha. My name is
Paula Ambre. I'm the Executive Director of the Maui Farm. I'm here tonight to request
your support for the budget allocation for the Maui Farm's Facilities, Repair and
Maintenance Program as currently included in the budget proposal. A little bit of
information about our agency. The Maui Farm is a nationally accredited community
based non-profit organization. We provide residential services for male and female youth
ages 10 to 21, who are referred to our agency through our State's Child Welfare Juvenile
Justice and Behavioral Health systems. Our mission is to provide long-term family-style
care and supportive services for troubled youth and their families and to nurture their
growth and development into responsible and contributing members of our community.
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Our residential services are delivered in a family-style group home setting, located on our
campus in Makawao. This is our ohana model of service delivery designed to meet the
individual needs of the youth in our program, while serving them within a healthy
functioning family system and helping them to address the emotional and behavioral
challenges they bring. In addition, the Maui Farm provides a farm-based experiential
program utilizing plants and animals and therapeutic activities. This supports our young
people in developing skills, learning responsibility, building self-esteem, pre-vocational
training in the fields of agricultural and animal husbandry, and basically the Maui Farm
helps our young people to grow through positive experiences with people, plants and
animals. In 1990, the Maui Farm executed a 55-year lease with the County of Maui for
our eight-acre campus in Makawao. Federal and County funding enabled us to develop
our site and construct our facilities, and the Maui Farm is very fortunate as a non-profit
organization to have no mortgage or debt service, which allows us to dedicate our fiscal
resources to supporting our programs and our young people. Over the years, we've
developed our campus to include our family-style homes, a two-acre therapeutic farm,
plant nursery, gardens and other spacious areas. We believe that the Maui Farms have
been a good steward of our land and our property over the years, and we've implemented
our routine repairs and maintenance activities with funds that we received through our
State contracts for residential services. However, the funding available through those
contracts is not sufficient to support the more non-routine and long-term repairs and
maintenance and equipment replacement--excuse me--that we find ourselves facing now.
Our goal is to have at least $150,000 for our repairs, maintenance and replacement
activities. The primary objective of this Facilities, Repair and Maintenance Program is to
ensure that our facilities continue to be safe, well maintained and appropriate as an
environment for learning, healing and growth. As the leaseholder for the Maui Farm's
campus, the County of Maui has an interest in the maintenance and care of our facilities
and campus, and this is why we are asking for your support. Our facilities are one of our
greatest assets, and we seek to maintain them for the benefit of all who utilize our
campus, including our youth and families, our staff, visitors and the Maui community.
The allocation that's currently in the budget is for $150,000. We wanted to inform you
that we, just this week, received notice from the Alexander & Baldwin Foundation, that
they'll be awarding a grant in the amount of $10,000 towards our Repair Maintenance
fund. So we wanted you to be aware of this and to make any adjustments accordingly.
The County of Maui has been a great partner to the Maui Farm in the development and
operation of our agency over the years, and we want to thank you so much for that
partnership and ask for your support for the request that's before you now. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Ambre. Members, any questions for the testifier? I just have
one question, is this going to be an ongoing request, the $150,000 just for maintenance?
MS. AMBRE: This is a one-time only request.
CHAIR KANE: Okay.
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MS. AMBRE: And just for maintenance.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, thank you very much. Okay, I appreciate it. Ladies and gentlemen,
we're going to be taking a recess. We will reconvene this meeting at 7:35, so we'll take
about ten minutes. We are in recess.

RECESS:

7:25 p.m.

RECONVENE:

7:37 p.m.

CHAIR KANE: Okay, we'd like to reconvene. Thank you very much. We have next to testify,
Maggie Prevenas, and following Ms. Prevenas we have Kathy McBride.
MS. PREVENAS: Aloha, my name is Maggie Prevenas, and I'm a volunteer after-school
advisor to the Kalama Intermediate School Future Scientists and Engineers of America,
which from this point will be known as FSEA. I'm also a full-time biology teacher there.
I'm a homeowner and a taxpayer. I live in Haiku.
I've never spoken in front of any board asking for anything during my entire life. This is
how passionately I feel about the FSEA. I'm compelled to tell you that without support
from the County of Maui through the Maui Economic Development Board the FSEA
would not exist.
I have taught in public schools in the mainland for almost 20 years. Funding for
programs in public schools in Hawaii is very scarce. Funding for classrooms in Hawaii
varies greatly from school to school. And Kalama is really good at providing for the bare
necessities, but as a teacher I need so much more for my kids, and as a parent, I would
hope that all teachers feel the same.
Support of the Maui Economic Development Board supports the after-school activities
for 36 intelligent and inquisitive middle school students in Upcountry Maui, as well as
augmenting lab experiences for many of my students. This money is well spent, as these
students will go on to be the problem solvers, not the problem makers of society. These
students are truly the future of our island.
The Maui Economic Development Board provided money for our membership, field
trips, club experiments and technology this year. Thanks to the Maui Economic
Development Board through the Women in Technology Project, we were able to
purchase four computers for the FSEA and technology exploration experience
after-school learning clubs. These monies were matched by Northrup Grumman. My
158 students now have access to valuable technology experience. They are learning that
knowledge is power but technology is dynamite. My students have also benefited from
the Introduce a Girl to Engineering Day. I wish you could have heard their enthusiasm
when they gave their report to the FSEA Club. It was awesome.
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In dealing with a large budget, it may seem that small amounts of money for little
projects are not significant. I tell you that the support from the Maui Economic
Development Board has made all the difference in the world for my students this year. I
hope for your continued support.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Prevenas. Members, any questions? Hearing none, thank you
very much for your testimony and you did a great job your first time. Kathy McBride, is
Kathy here? Good evening, and we have Kathy Brind, excuse if that's correct.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: ... (inaudible) ...
CHAIR KANE: Okay, thank you, ma'am.
MS. McBRIDE: Hi, my name is Kathy McBride. I work at Hui Noeau Visual Arts Center. I'm
an employee. I'm the registrar, and I want to thank all of you on the Council for
supporting Hui Noeau in the past and thank you for the opportunity to let us explain why
we hope for continued assistance and also increased assistance. I have been at the Hui
for about five years and I deal with all of the students. As the registrar, I see all of the
students that participate in our programs and take classes, and I can see the importance of
the arts for a large percentage of the community island-wide, ranging from adults to
children and visitors as well. We try to offer some programs for visitors. Our classes
range from ceramics, painting and drawing, printmaking, jewelry making, photography,
including digital photography, woodworking, children's programs, youth at-risk
programs and also school programs, where kids can come from the schools and have a
hands-on experience. We also have studio use for artists. They can come and be with
each other so-to-speak at the property, and experience the, you know, being with,
hanging around with other artists and so forth. I wanna just talk about the children's
programs in particular. That's where we can see the most amount of our hard work at the
Hui and how good it is for the community. Kids come and they take classes. They might
start out, you might have a kid who's shy and kind of sits in the back row. It's that type
of a kid. They start taking classes at the Hui and pretty soon they have a total self-esteem
changeover. They have increased confidence and pretty soon they're teaching the other
kids how to do the ceramics or whatever it is that they are working on. Also the
youth-at-risk programs, we have programs for organizations like Maui Youth and Family
Services, Alternative Learning Center, the Farm and Hui Malama and other, other groups.
Y outh-at-risk teens can come to the Hui. A lot of times they come and at first they act
like they're not really interested. They might, you know, they have all ranging
difficulties in their life and so forth. They start taking class. As soon as they start using
their imaginations with art they can see possibilities for themselves and they see the art
and they experience all kinds of changes of actual, you know, concrete physical changes
that you can see, especially with the youth at-risk. The Hui Noeau, as you all probably
are aware is undergoing quite a bit of changes. We've had a lot of publicity. We have an
opportunity now to really grow and develop the organization and that's why we hope that
we can continue to have support from the County and actual increased support at this
time. Thank you.
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CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. McBride. Members, any questions? Hearing none, and Kathy
Brind is not here. Thank you very much. Is Paul Mullowney here? Mr. Mullowney,
good evening and following Mr. Mullowney is Jack Freitas.
MR. MULLOWNEY: Good evening. Good evening. My name is Paul Mullowney, and I'm the
Director of the Printmaking Department and the Hui Noeau Visual Arts Center. And I've
been there about a year and a half. It's pretty incredible what's happened in the last few
months with this whole land, possible land sale, and everything that went down, and
suddenly there's this huge up-swell of support from the community and I, it goes to show
how important arts and cultural are to everybody on this island. And it came Statewide
from the Governor's Office, from the Mayor's Office, from all the artists throughout the
State. So I'm just here to say, just very briefly, I hope we can count on your support. It's
been fantastic in the past that you support the youth at-risk, which is really a big part of
what we do.
What we're doing, what I'm doing at the print studio, I'm also in charge of the visiting
artist program. We're bringing in artists from all over the world now--from Japan, New
York City, some of the top artists we can find--to have interaction with the community
and teach classes and workshops and that's all really good for the adults in the
community and all the artists. But I'm really excited about the youth at-risk. There's a
mural project going on. It started yesterday and if you all have a chance to go to Maui
Arts & Cultural Center on April 1t h to see the Celebrating the Artist Within Us, the
annual, you know, exhibition of the youth on the island, you'll see for the first time ever
to my knowledge, a youth at-risk group doing a group project that will be shown at the
MACC. They started yesterday. There was eight girls working for five days and next
week there will be eight to 12 boys working for five days from, not the Farm. We've
worked with lots of Farm kids before, but from Youth & Family Services. It's really
incredible to see what can happen when these kids are given a chance to express
themselves through art. I'm really excited about that, and I hope that we can count on
you for your help. I really appreciate the time. Thank you very much.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Mullowney. Members, any questions? Hearing none, thank
you for your testimony this evening. Jack Freitas followed by Paula Newell.
MR. FREITAS: Good afternoon, Council people. Most of you know who I am. You folks
never seen me testify, but we have a major safety issue on the road that I live in. I'd like
to give you guys a little history on this road. I was born and raised in Makawao. In
1947, we used to farm by the Girls Scout Camp. It was a dirt road. The road was
constantly being surfaced with red cinder from Kula, a cinder pit, and they would grade
the road and it would go on and on. Elmer Carvalho came up, he got elected into office,
they put black top right over the cinder base. It was never prepared properly. Since then
the road has been paved systematically over the years, and the road has never been
brought up to par. We have, I've lived there 25 years on Piiholo. We have trees now that
have grown for 25 years on the bank and now it is taking up part of the lane. It is not the
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idea that it is a continuous speed bump all the way up Piiholo Road. The idea is it's a
safety issue. You play dodge, dodge holes all the time, and people in the County will tell
you, it is the roots from the trees. Yes, you have problems where the roots are, but you
also have areas where the road has sunk because you do not have a base. The road has
never been prepared. There is no shoulders at all, none whatsoever. It is a safety issue.
I'm coming up, sunset, coming up the road, come around the turn, a guy in the middle of
the road, going up Piiholo Road on a bike. Somebody is going to get killed. Some of
you may know that I own a small tow company. I'm on a Police rotation. We have from
the Police--and you can check this with the Police Department--at least two roll overs a
month on Piiholo Road. And what happens is, there's guys going around, all of a sudden
a car comes there, he got no place to go, he climbs the bank, he rolls over. Somebody is
going to get killed on Piiholo Road. It is definitely, definitely a safety issue. I have, my
wife has a new car, 30,000 miles we have to replace the ball joints. We didn't have to,
we did it already. It's done. Fact. I'm speaking not just for myself, I'm speaking on the
behalf of all of the people that live on Piiholo Road. I've talked to a lot of them, they
cannot make it tonight. There is some other people here that have showed up and it has
to be funded. We have another major safety issue on Makawao, on Baldwin A venue. In
front of Rodeo Deli. The cars are parked at an angle parking, and it is into the street.W e
have had accidents where they've hit urn. Mr. Molina, you live there. You know what
I'm talking about, I'm sure. It is not right. It has to be corrected, and I thank you folks
for your time. And I ask you guys to look at this as not making the road, what you call
surface smooth. Look at it as a safety issue. Somebody is going to get killed. You folks
all have been put on notice that it is definitely a safety issue. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Freitas. Members, any questions for Mr. Freitas? Hearing
none, thank you. Thank you, sir. Paula Newell. Paula and Stefan Phillips.
MS. NEWELL: Hi, good evening. I'm sorry if I sound like I've got a frog in my throat. I'm
kind of recuperating a little bit from a cold, but my name is Paula Newell. I'm Lyle
Bettger's daughter. I'm, he was actually one of the first people to begin with the
COMET years ago in, 15 years ago with Bill, so I'm kind of here to sort of fuel the fire as
well, too. Thank you very much so far for listening to the suggestions that he has made
about property tax, but I'm quite concerned. I have got three figures to give you right
now with my father's property, that is down Lae Place almost a stone's throw from here
right now.
In 2003, we were assessed at 1.7 million. Last year, we paid on 2.5 million, and I just
went to the property office the other day and it's now 4.8, almost 4.9 million. And the
answer that I got back from the assessment office was that, well, you've got a very
expensive piece of property, and if it's not going to work for you, that you can pay the
property tax, then you're just going to have to sell it. My mom and dad moved over here
in 1963. My dad was a famous movie actor, wanted to live over here, was good friends
with Jack Lord, with Dick Denny who played the governor over there, loved it here on
Maui. We've owned the property outright all of these years, and I've been told that the
recent assessment for this year, for the cycle for 2005, that no one even came out. It

- 27 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

March 30, 2005 (Paia)

wasn't even physically checked, and this is a really unusual area out here in Kuau and
Paia because there are very expensive homes. Older homes, such as my father's place
which was built in 1937, and yet the assessments are just continually going up and up.
This year my family alone, we've going to have to pay close to $30,000 to keep the
property. It's kind of interesting tonight that all of the programs that everybody is
coming and talking to you about is all based on the fact that people will continue to be
able to be citizens and live here and the whole property tax issue is so very vital and so
very important because if people can't afford to live here, you know, how is it going to
work? If 38 percent of the budget this year--I had a chance to just look at it briefly at the
large handout that was given--that's a pretty major chunk that we're talking about with
the budget. And I think it needs to be really looked at carefully and properly budgeted
too, that there's enough people to do the assessments. I understand that the staff had been
cut from 11 to five in the last year, two years, and it's just simply not possible for people
to be able to really come out and fairly assess what's going on. I am more than happy to .
. . (CHANGE TAPE) ... it's done fairly, and, again, I really appreciate your time letting
me be able to speak to you tonight about this. I got out of bed tonight to come to do this
because I felt very strongly about it so thank you so much, again, for your support so far.
We really appreciate it and COMET hopes that you'll continue to work with us. Thank
you very much.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Newell. Members, any questions? Hearing none, thank you
for being here this evening. Stefan Phillips and then we have Leonard Hasse, I believe.
Hasse.
MR. PHILLIPS: Mr. Chairman, Members of the Council, thank you for taking the time to listen
to our concerns. I would like to speak tonight concerning the safety issue with Piiholo
Road. I am a property owner up there. I moved up there in October. I am a business
owner, a father and a retired race driver, and I can tell you from experience that Piiholo
Road is not only scary, somebody is going to die on it. Since moving there in October, I
have personally eight times dodged accidents from people crossing over the centerline,
avoiding potholes. I would invite you to drive the road. I mean, you know, you can
listen to us, we can come, and we can whine, and we can complain, but until you drive
the road a couple of times and see what happens, it's, it's really bad. There's potholes
that are this deep. There's about a two-mile stretch of the road from a half-mile to about
two and a half miles up. Two of those accidents were County trucks that I avoided.
There is nowhere to go. You can't, you know, you can't pull off on the shoulder and get
out of the way. Your choices are hit the car that's crossed over the centerline or hit the
big Eucalyptus tree. It really needs to be resurfaced. The County road crews do make an
effort to come up there and patch a couple of holes, but what I see happened, as I see the
truck come up there, they stop, they take a shovel full of asphalt, they throw it on a hole
this big and then they drive 300 yards up the road and do it again, leaving the two-foot
wide, foot and a half deep pothole for somebody to get killed in. Please look at the
budget, include some money, resurface Piiholo Road. Thank you.
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CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Phillips. Members, any questions? Hearing none, thank you,
sir, for your testimony. Leonard Hasse and, again, if I'm mispronouncing your name, I
apologize. And then we have Alfredo Villas-Boas.
MR. HASSE: My name is Leonard Hasse. I'm a retired Civil Engineer and Installation
Manager, which is equivalent to Manager and Public Works. I want to thank
Mike Molina for responding to a lot of my letters to the Water Department concerning a
one-mile stretch of a waterline that needs to be upgraded to provide fire protection
between Mile Marker 3 and Mile Marker 4. We're adjacent to the watershed. If the
woods ever catch on fire, which it almost did twice, we're going to lose houses and
possibly lives. Okay. The second safety issue that concerns me is Piiholo Road. Like I
said I live 3.2 miles up, the road is heavily rutted. Lengthwise it has roots that are
causing bumps that you have to steer around, and you lose control of your vehicle, and
you have large drop-offs predominantly on the curves where water runs down, goes
around the curve, undercuts the road. The problem with the ruts is that they're alligatorcracking, which means the surface is breaking up, the water penetrates the pavement, gets
into the subgrade, big trucks pump the water around and you loosen the road. In the
seven years I've lived there, I've seen the road deteriorate exponentially and it's going to
get nothing but worse. And it's beyond the little hand-patch job. It's going to require
digging out the rutted areas, replacing it with the proper sub grade and resurfacing. Okay,
I've owned property up there for 32 years. We've had a waterline problem, and we've
had a road problem in those 32 years that I've owned that property. So we seek your
assistance in raising the priorities of these two projects to the point where we get some
funding and we get some action taken. Thank you very much.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Hasse. Members, any questions? Mr. Hasse, if you can please.
We have a question for you. Council member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Good evening, Leonard. Thanks for showing up here tonight
to make us aware of how serious the conditions are on Piiholo Road. If you recall, I
guess your Community Association had a meeting about roughly a month or two ago.
MR. HASSE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: And we discussed the concerns regarding both roads. Did the
Association also bring this concern to the Administration as well, and did, was there a
response from the Administration?
MR. HASSE: I can't answer that for the Community Association because I'm not a principal in
that. But I know of no response back, except that we should corne forth and let the
Council know of our concerns. And this is a way that we need to bring it and highlight
the problem, and just like my predecessor said, you need to drive the road once and you'll
find out what the problems are. The last meeting they said, can you identify where the
bad parts are. You drive it once you're going to find out that every curve is a bad part
and there's a few stretches in between where the roots are really bad. And the heavy
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truck traffic on that road is doing nothing but making the problem worse cause it's
making the ruts deeper, and like they said, you have nowhere to go. You either hit the
ditch, hit the car or, or hit head-on.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Hasse. Okay, Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Just like to let you know that my assistant has been taking
pictures and will show the rest of my colleagues here what the conditions of the roads are
like in ...
MR. HASSE: If you have any technical questions that need an answer, I live up 3.2 miles, stop
by. I'll be glad to answer it. Okay.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, sir. Thank you very much. Next to testify is Alfredo Villas-Boas,
and he'll be followed by Rick Patritzio.
MR. VILLAS-BOAS: Good evening, sir. Ladies and Gentlemen. My name is Alfredo Boas
and I been, sorry. I'm from Brazil. I been living in the island since 1990. I been
volunteer for the Junior Lifeguard Program since '93 to '94, and I been a full-time
employee for the County of Maui as an Ocean Safety Officer since '97. I have some ...
over there is Ashley(?) at Jaws and so you folks have a understanding that we do respond
for any situations at Jaws at Peahi. We are one of the two lifeguard agencies on the
nation that is on the 911 system. Therefore, we will respond to any ocean-relate incidents
on our coast. We'll be called by the Central Dispatch, and we respond on our jet ski
apparatus to do the rescue. And I would like to have a close attention on our hazard pay,
you know. We're doing this rescues for about ten years with the apparatus. They start off
as a top of the line jet ski that weights 200 pounds, to a top of the line jet ski that weights
today 800 pounds over that, and we have to manage to move those things from our
station down to the water, and we do need, I am a 147 pounds. I need at least three
friends to, workers to manage to move this thing at the beach, and it's a, it's a very
delicate issue for us because every time we put ourselves on the situation, on the ocean
that is a high surf advisory, hazardous conditions we're not really getting paid hazard
pay. We just got paid our regular salary and also there is some officers that are not even
trained or in charge of, to even touch the apparatus, and we get paid the same also so
there is a little difference of the individual that do operate and is certified to operate those
apparatus on high surf or any type situation. And those individuals that just work at the
tower and, and do the tower work, so we represent the man and woman of the ocean
safety and the Rescue Ski Operator personnel of the County of Maui and we would like
that you folks take a look on that. And I also have a request to help keep our lifeguard
towers right now that we are operating on the regular base, sometimes with three officers
and sometimes we operate with two officers, on a daily basis, that we have not the
infrastructure that we actually need to a regular lifeguard operations. We don't have
bathroom facilities. They did gave us a porta potti, but when the wind is over 30, 35
miles an hour (inaudible) basic, that thing gets tipped over and it's a mess. We have no
electricity at our storage or tower, and we cannot keep equipment, valuable apparatus in
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the storage because we have no alarm system. And at this time, we have no A TV quad
also to help us push the apparatus in and out of the ocean when we need. Thank you very
much.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Villas-Boas, hang on one second now. Members, any questions for the
testifier this evening? If not, thank you for your testimony. Really appreciate it. Rick
Patritzio and then David Gallagher.
MR. PATRITZIO: Good evening, my name is Rick Patritzio. I'm here tonight to testify on
behalf of all the men and women who put their lives on the line on a volunteer-based
program with the Ocean Safety Department. As you are all aware of the lifeguards using
a jet ski to perform ocean rescues, they have been doing this without any compensation
for over ten years. The past three years the operators have been responding to the newly
enhanced 911 systems where a call comes in, they are now obligated to respond. My
testimony tonight is to ask the Members of the County Council to set aside appropriate
funds for these officers who are making a difference in people's livelihood on a daily
basis, going outside of their job classification. The newly enhanced 911 system has been
proven in saving lives with the quick response time that the jet ski allows. In closing, I
would just like to thank you folks for your continued support with Ocean Safety and hope
this is a priority, to recognize the men and women out there on a daily basis with no
compensation for all these years.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Patritzio. Members, any questions? Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TA V ARES: Excuse me. What do you mean by no compensation?
MR. P ATRITZIO: Like Alfredo brought up earlier, we enhance our professionalism. Every
year we learn our CPR, our first aid. We've enhanced the AED system that you have on
the back wall there for training. None of this is added responsibility. We're trained as
first responders, equal and training as EMTs, fire fighters and medics. Okay, there is no
compensation of wages of what the fire fighters make, medics, police or fire for the
compensation of training we have. So if, the jet skis ...
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Have you, excuse me, have you brought this up with your
union?
MR. P ATRITZIO: I am the union.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: You are the union? Then you know that we don't do the
salaries.
MR. PATRITZIO: Well ...
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: It's negotiated.
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MR. PATRITZIO: When I take it to the union, we bring it to the Board, they're starting that it
needs a reorganization.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay.
MR. PATRITZIO: And then testify that there's jobs classification. And what they're saying is
there is no room in our SR ratings for any changes. They need to re-org. our entire
department. So how many more years do you want to put men and women out on the
beaches in adverse conditions outside of their job classifications?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I'll talk to you after the meeting and tell you who you should
be talking with.
MR. PATRITZIO: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. We don't make that decision.
MR. PATRITZIO: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:
Commissions.

That's handled by the union and the Civil Service

MR. P ATRITZIO: Alright.
COUNCILMEMBER TAV ARES: Thank you.
MR. PATRITZIO: Okay.
CHAIR KANE: Any further questions? Thank you very much for your testimony
MR. PATRITZIO: Alright.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Next person to testify is David Gallagher.
Gallagher we have Dana Jones.

Following Mr.

MR. GALLAGHER: Good mom .... good morning, good evening. Thank you very much for
giving me the time to speak to all of you this evening on some very important topics. I
have been asked by my fellow Ocean Safety Officers to speak on the opinions and the
views of, not just myself, but of them. I also come to you this evening as a taxpayer and
a member of this community for the last 32 years and a voter for 32 years, registered. I
know that you have all been patiently been getting bombarded with request from Ocean
Safety with what they need. We want to expand, we need towers, we need to be
supporting the community in Hana District. We want to expand to Launiupoko. We
want to expand to Makena Beach. There are some requesting the need, or wanting to
separate from Parks & Recreation, which brings to us a really great concern.
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I would like, in my few minutes, to simply summarize a lot of these requests to you. Oh,
boy. .. this isn't too easy, is it? Ocean Safety needs, more than anything else, better
management of what they already have. What they don't need is more of what they
currently are unable to manage. Fortunately, there are a lot of solutions to each one of
our problems, and I would like to make myself available to any questions now or later on.
I'm listed in the phone book. My last name's Gallagher. First Gallagher in the phone
book, and with the time limit so I can't quite go into it, but I'm, used to be the union
steward, and I've been very active for the last 11 years as an Ocean Safety Officer and
I'm very concerned. Concerned for us, and I'm also concerned for the potential liability
of mismanagement in such a critical area as rescue, which we are. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Gallagher. If you can say your first name.
MR. GALLAGHER: David.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, David.
MR. GALLAGHER: David Frank Gallagher.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Members, any questions for Mr. Gallagher? Hearing none, thank
you very much for making yourself available this evening and beyond. Dana Jones,
followed by ... and I'm sorry, Roberta Higgins, I' sorry. Roberta Higgins.
MR. JONES: Thank you. I've never spoken before the Council before. As far as I would like to
echo what Leonard Hasse and Mr. Freitas said. I live up at the top of Olinda. I drive 4.3
miles up Piiholo Road approximately six times a week, and the last major paving job that
I recall on Piiholo Road was in 1990. The road, as I remember it, prior to that paving job,
was nowhere near the condition that it's in today. You've got major potholes, tree roots
that have grown and caused the asphalt to buckle, the waters. We get a tremendous
amount of rain up there and, as a result, if one of your, you have people trying to dodge
the large potholes. So often times you'll come around a curve, and this happens all too
often, somebody will be trying to avoid a road hazard and they'll be in your lane coming
at you and you have very little choice but to go very slowly on that road.
I've got a four-wheel-drive truck. That's almost a necessity living up there at this point.
I've had to have the front-end worked on twice. It's, it's sad, we appreciate the fact that
Mr. Molina has come to our meetings at the Olinda Community Association, and I would
encourage each Member of the Council to take a drive on Piiholo Road, rather than take
someone else's word for it and actually experience the thrill ride that this has become.
I remember Charmaine Tavares' father, Hannibal Tavares was the Mayor that last big,
when they started at the top and paved all the way down. And I thanked your father for
that. We were really grateful that someone cared enough to pave the whole road. Sadly,
that was the last paving job, and that was just over 15 years ago that we've seen on that
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road. And it's sad. I would rather tell you about it now. We've had a lot of accidents on
that road as a result of the condition of the road. But if that road isn't repaved, I'm afraid
it's just going to get worse. Once the asphalt is busted up and the water starts going
through it, it deteriorates rather quickly. Right now, it looks like someone took a large
ball pein hammer and just started smashing the thing. So it's, it's seriously bad shape.
Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, sir. If you can, please state your name for the record.
MR. JONES: Dana Jones.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Jones.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Question.
CHAIR KANE: Members, any questions? Ms. Tavares
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes, Mr. Jones. When the Mayor took his hearings out to
the public like this in October or November, did you folks present this concern about
Piiholo Road?
MR. JONES: I attend the Olinda Community Association meetings.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay.
MR. JONES: And we've spoken to Mike Molina.
Parsons.

We've also addressed concerns to Rob

COUNCILMEMBER TAV ARES: Okay, thank you. Thank you very much.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Next we have Roberta Higgins, and then Morrow Badga. And,
again, if I can remind everybody, I need to remind everybody if you can please speak into
the mike so that we can hear you, so that everybody else can hear you, and most
importantly, we have you recorded so we can have you on record. Thank you,
Ms. Higgins.
MS. HIGGINS: Thank you. My name is Roberta Higgins, and good evening Council Members
and thank you for letting me come to speak. It's a part of two programs that had assisted
me and my family. First and most, I would like to support increase in the Mayor's
budget of $250,000 for the youth center, youth centers of Maui County. Most especially
the Paia Youth & Cultural Center that my three sons had attended. As a past Board
Member for this Program, I see the need in having more activities to assist in reaching the
youth of Paia. It is very important that we get the youth of Paia off the street and away
from drugs. By funding the Youth Center, this will help getting the youth to come to a
safe place and from illegal activities that is happening in my community. I know it is
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happening. I see it happen when I turn the corner on Baldwin A venue. That is why it is
so important that the Youth Center reach these kids and get 'em off the street and a safe
place with a lot of activities at the Youth Center.
Another program that I would like you to keep supporting and funding is the MEO
Headstart, Afterschool, and Summer Programs.
My youngest son had attended
Headstart, and he is now serving his Country and he is in the Army. At this, at the time
we didn't receive these services, but it was hard for me and my husband to find that after
school care to make sure my son was safe. And it is very important to the family that
they know that when they are working, their child in is a quality early-childhood
program. Thank you and I would like to request that you continue funding MEO
Headstart, Afterschool and Summer Programs. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Higgins. Members, any questions? Hearing none, thank you
for your testimony this evening. Morrow Bagda. Mr. Badga will be followed by
Lance Holter.
MR. BAGDA: Members of Council and those who are left in the audience, my name is Marrow
Badga, and I'm a resident of Kuau. Been there for about 25 years, just a little hop, skip
and a jump from this location here. One more meeting to go, I think I could probably
hear a big sigh of relief coming from certain Members. Anyway, I'm proud to say that I
am a member of the COMET organization, an organization that was started by five
members, five resident members of Paia some 17 years ago.
And I get that question every once in a while. I'm sure the other members do. They say
what is COMET? What do they do? And I try to put that down into about two words or
two sentences, rather. Maybe one. Simply stated, it's a group of volunteers that try, try
to even the playing field on property taxation for the little guy. Who's the little guy? I'm
a little guy and there's probably two or three more here tonight, but I'm going say that
once again, it's a group of volunteers that try to even the playing field on property
taxation for the little guy.
Our group's been trying to do that now for these 17 years, and I can assure you that this
COMET organization is going to keep right on trying to do it until they meet that goal.
Recently, Maui's Mayor, Alan Arakawa made a public statement, "There's nothing
wrong with our method of assessing residential property, and it doesn't need
overhauling." Has the Mayor really examined the property assessment methods used in
Maui? I don't think so, with a statement like that. How can an assessment on the
property that I have lived in for 25 years have an average past assessment increase of less
than 10 percent, 25 years less than 10 percent. And then all of a sudden, this year, the
property assessment jumps from 10 percent to 69 percent. Is that a good method? Is that
a method that doesn't need overhauling? I think it does and I think there's a lot others
who do. It seems to me that the grandiose plans of the Mayor's budget is very obviously
taken at the expense of the little guy. That's me. Increased property assessment on their
property. Mr. Mayor, Mr. Mayor, there's a big urgent need for change. I'm gonna let
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you decide where it should begin. Members of the Council, it will be your responsibility,
and you know it as best as well as I, to examine very carefully this budget which you
have and which we've been talking about. I ask, and there's others, too, that you give this
budget a very careful examination, and especially, thank you. And especially the
Mayor's portion of it. As an instance, the Mayor has plans to increase our bonded
indebtedness from 19.5 million to 42 million. It doesn't take a great mathematician to
figure out that that's better than 100 percent increase. It's my observation that's not a
good plan for Maui. Thank you for allowing me to make my thoughts public.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Bagda. Members, any questions for Mr. Badga? Hearing
none, thank you for your comments this evening. Lance Holter, and he'll be followed by
Bob and Virginia Karpovich.
MR. HOLTER: Good evening. Thank you for coming out this way. I appreciate you coming
over on this side. What I wanted to speak to you about tonight is the real estate transfer
taxes that I gave Jo Anne a Ph.D study done for a University of Texas, which discusses
the use of real estate transfer taxes throughout the nation. Thirty-seven states use real
estate transfer taxes, including 13 local jurisdictions, to fund the purchase of ag lands,
conservation areas, park lands and land for affordable housing. I know Joe spoke about
this I think about two years ago using conveyance taxes to do this funding for a source of
creating a revenue for purchase of these lands. The big obstacle in the past has been the
National Association of Realtors, which have a knee jerk reaction to conveyance taxes,
and in this dissertation you'll find that there's an excellent arguments of why this position
is inaccurate.
Real estate transfer taxes have been very successful throughout the nation in funding
parks, acquisition, and lands for affordable housing. For example, I spoke with Bill about
what we could have done in Molokai when this ahupua' a came up, and it was, we could
have, if we had this R.E.T. system in place, we could have purchased this land, the 2 or
300 acres at the top, which was pretty pristine mesic forest. We could have put that 2 or
300 acres into conservation. We could have used all fishponds for educational purposes.
We could have set aside the rest of the land in a land trust and a portion of that land, we
could have used for farm, ag lots and so forth. So it could have benefited everybody on
Molokai. It could have benefited all of the people and the landowner who would have
purchased that, had it been, say, for instance, a land trust or the Land Board which would
use this R.E.T. system. For example, in Vermont, it's called the Vermont Housing and
Conservation Board. This would have been a very successful system. All people in
Molokai would have benefited from it.
Now, why we need ... right now, in the Legislature we have the Legacy Lands Act in
place, not in place but in a bill. I think it's in the Senate now. We have several other
bills that are in the Legislature right now that are using conveyance taxes to try to fund
acquisition of parks, conservation areas, affordable housing and so forth. And I know
that you have a package so that, maybe it's already gone, but if it's gone to the
Legislature, I'd like you to please support this after, of course, reading the dissertation. I
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think after reading this dissertation you'll agree that it's a very successful system, and
one interesting aspect of it is that it shows systems throughout the nation and Hawaii has
the lowest conveyance tax in the nation. The highest is 2 percent, which I think is
Massachusetts, and we share with Illinois a $1 per thousand which is ours, which is less
than 1110th of 1 percent.
Also, I'd like support for miconia eradication. It's a silent threat. It will destroy our
ecosystem if we don't act. We have a chance right now. In places like Tahiti, it's
destroyed their ecosystem, and we can't let this happen here.
Another issue that I hope we would support is our stream studies. We need to get
in-stream studies done so we know how much water needs to remain in streams to keep
biotic life in place in these streams, and I think that since we are consumers of our surface
waters we need to understand how much water is available to humankind, as well as our
biosphere. Thank you very much.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Holter. Members, any questions for Mr. Holter? Hearing
none, thank you for your testimony.
MR. HOLTER: Good night.
CHAIR KANE: Good night. Robert Karpovich followed by William Kleinwachter.
MR. KARPOVICH: Good evening, my name is Robert Karpovich. I'm a long-time resident
here in Paia, and I spent quite a bit of time with the assessors reviewing their job, what
they're doing here on the north shore in trying to find out just what is going on. They
obviously do not have adequate staffing to even operate under the current system. In
other words, their input into the computer is an error in many cases because they just
don't have the personnel
to
adequately review
the properties they
may ... (CHANGE TAPE) ... You say, also, so what is happening on the north shore is
someone will buy something ocean-front or not an ocean-front to hundreds of thousands
or million dollars of work on properties to convert them to little mini hotels. All of this
off the books and the tax assessor is looking in the old blue books from 1915. Oh, he's
got a $150,000 house, so now a million dollar property is sold for $3 million because the
new owner can bring in $2,500 a night in rental. Not the tax assessor's business. He
doesn't care or he doesn't have the time. There's only five of them so now the system is
the sales price. They subtract the building value out, which is this $150,000, and they
say, oh, your land is worth a couple of millions bucks and by the square foot we all pay
tax on that per square foot basis. But in reality, the buildings are under assessed by half a
million or a million dollars and the fact that that's really a business-use property, a
vacation rental with multiple units, which is illegal, but the Mayor chooses to ignore that.
The investors are coming in and buying the space on a business income and they can earn
2,000 bucks a night. The property is worth 2 or 3 million bucks to them. But the rest of
us who are left, which is getting fewer and fewer residents, are paying tax on a land
value. This whole system is just, just, it's not working anymore, so I take issue with the
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Mayor. We need more assessors, we need a directive to them that if there's any, any
nightly rental use that these properties are not used as comparables to other properties.
Sometimes they put them into a hotel resort category, as down by Mama's Fish House.
Sometimes they don't. Most vacation rentals are off the books and not, 99 percent of the
sales in the last two years have been properties here that have been converted to mini
hotels. And it forces the rest of us, either sell your land or convert your house into mini
hotels, and the Mayor doesn't choose to enforce vacation rental. Or if you have empty
property and you're trying to hold it for your family, as some of us are, then to build, to
build out mini hotels. Because I'm wearing rags tonight because my taxes are going to
be $20,000 on an empty lot. This may be, way, way less than Mama's Fish House whose
building infrastructure is still taxed at $150,000 from the old blue book when Floyd has
put millions upon millions upon millions of dollars into that infrastructure and the
assessors have been told, they say, we don't have time to go out and look. We don't have
time to go and look, or we don't want to go and look. But there's tax rage when a
multi-million dollars worth of improvements. The guy has had a staff of 20 carpenters
and workshops working day and night craning in a second story additions on Easter
weekend, year after year after year, but they do not assess that. And then they put an
empty lot, an empty interior lot in Kuau at a higher price than a whole big commercial
infrastructure. The system is broken; we need more assessors to go out.
In Vermont the State mandated that they hire appraisers, and they went property, by
property, by property. They actually looked and appraised each property as to what it
was, and I think this Council needs to separate out the business use, vacation, mini hotels
and get their people who can bring in a couple thousand bucks a night that can afford the
tax, and let the other residents keep their property at some residential rate. Thank you
very much.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Karpovich. Members, questions for Mr. Karpovich? Thank
you very much for your testimony. Virginia, please come forward. Maybe your husband
should have adjusted that for you. But that's okay.
MRS. KARPOVICH: We always have this problem. He builds my cabinets like this. Thank
you so much for coming this evening, and thank you all for smiling and for paying such
great attention. It's very obvious, and we're very proud of our Council, and we depend
on you and this, this tax issue really we know where we're going to get our help and, and
we appreciate it. We appreciate the fact you're listening. I just wanna say that the fabric
of our communities is breaking apart. There's not that much of it left. You know, our
community elders who we respect, you know, are coming again and again and again and
saying the same things. My taxes, you know, have doubled last year, the year before, this
year. And the five appraisals that were comparables that were given to us, of the five,
four, when we went down and inspected the actual properties, four were wrong. Just
wrong. You know, one of them, two of them were actually two properties combined,
said there was no house. There was a million-dollar house on it, and you all are
depending 37 percent on these assessments. I'm gonna go to every person in Kuau and
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show them all the mistakes. That's a million dollars in revenue, I mean that's a million
dollars in assessment on our taxes that's coming off, and there, out of five, there was one
that was correct. The tax assessor told us we didn't have the time to look. We use the
MLS sales, which don't even include, you know, for-sale-by-owners. And I paid $10,000
in tax this year. Don't I deserve an appraiser that comes out and actually looks at my
neighborhood physically. And when he told us this, he told us because we said we were
coming to speak to you. When Mayor Tavares was in office, when I moved here, there
were no illegal vacation rentals or apartments that used to be single-family residences.
People respected the laws. They don't respect them anymore, and this kind of tax
appraisal is gonna take the fabric, the people like us that we're speaking to you tonight,
out. And you won't be looking at the people who are living here because they come for
two weeks a year and the rest of the time, the house is empty, or two of the two properties
that we were assessed against. One is rented part-time. The owner lives here. The rest
of the time, $900 a night. Nine hundred a night times 30 days, that's a grand total of
$27,000 a month. Of course, he's not worried about his $20,000 a year taxes, and the
next guy whose property sold for 3.5, his property is rented for $2,500 a night. For one
month, he makes $75,000. Is he worried, is he here testifying? He doesn't care, so if you
want the fabric of our community to stay put, the people who come here and speak to
you, we need to revise this whole tax system. And I was looking at the spear guns over
there when Bill was talking about the Vikings, and I was thinking, if we have to march, I
think those spear guns would be appropriate.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Karpovich.
MS. KARPOVICH: Thank you so much.
CHAIR KANE: Members, any questions? Hearing none, thank you and Mr. Kleinwachter,
thank you very much. Following you is Ms. Christina Hemming.
MR. KLEINW ACHTER: My name is Bill Kleinwachter. I am a resident of 150 Mahiai Place,
which is about two and a half miles up Piiholo. I'm here basically again on Piiholo.
About six months ago I put a paper together called "Piiholo, A Dangerous Road, Gone
Critically Dangerous," and we passed that in through Mike's office. Thank goodness he
even passed it in to the Mayor's office. It went to Public Works. Public Works came
back and said, well, you got a lot of spider cracks on those roads, and they're real bad,
and we got no money, is about all they said. They didn't even address the danger issue.
Now, I've got copies of that. I only have five. My printer broke, I'm sorry, but I do have
five copies I can pass out. There's a couple of things I wanted to basically state a little bit
stronger. Piiholo is dangerous for many reasons. There's no shoulders. It's bordered by
Eucalyptus trees. There's many right-angle blind curves. It's fairly steep angle of rise in
places, and it's wet a lot of times of the year. Dirt banks are on both sides of the road, up
to the, up to your windshield level. It's become critically dangerous because roots are
growing out of the dirt banks, the road foundation is giving way, roots are pushing the
road upward. Road patches have patches, have patches, have patches, et cetera and et
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cetera. There's a lot of development going on at the upper end of the road causing more
traffic. Some of the worst sections of the road are at the blind curves. Now my
personally have been driven into the side of the road twice and did a, damage to my truck
because there was no road for me to drive in. Somebody was coming down in my lane. I
probably average an emergency stop about once every two weeks. I mean, people are not
staying in their lanes because of the condition of the road. Now, so many people were
talking about potholes. I don't think we're really talking potholes here. I think we're
talking the whole foundation of the road is giving way, and we're talking troughs of
indentations with tire tracks that go down into it. If you think pothole, you think of a
hole, something you can fill real easy. That's not what we're running into. The whole
road is giving way. I would like to have you come up there twice. One during the day,
and I want you to drive a full-size vehicle and see how many times you take corrective
action because of things along the road. Trees right at the edge of the road. You'll find
telephone poles. There's even one telephone pole right on the road. Okay, we're got tree
roots growing out right at the edge of the road. Then I want you to come up here at
nighttime and flash your lights so you can see the indentations and the holes that our
suspensions are going through everyday. I have just got an estimate for $1,700 for my
4-runner. I've already paid $1,200 to do the bottom end of it, and I'm doing it because
it's a safety issue and a lot of people's vehicles are being damaged to the point that
they're becoming a safety issue. The ball joints are going out. That's all I had to say.
Thank you very much.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Kleinwachter. Members, questions? Hearing none, thank you
for your testimony and your written testimony, sir. Next to speak is Christina Hemming,
and she'll be followed by Debra Merle.
MS. HEMMING: Good evening, County Council. My name is Christina Hemming, and I'm
here to comment on the Mayor's budget. We've heard a lot of good testimony tonight on
a few things. I'd like to sort of vary that.
First of all, once again, for a second or third time, I'd like to support the County Council
to cut the Maui Visitor Bureau budget funding from the County because we spend a lot of
money to get a lot of tourists who already come here all the time. I personally work at a
hotel. You know, we're always at 90 percent. I mean we already have a fabulous
standard that has been set. We need to take that money, and we need to put it into other
programs. At least for a year or two we need to up-grade what we actually provide to the
visitors. We need to support the lifeguards in the safety expansion. We need to support
the Boys & Girls Clubs and other keiki programs, drug treatment programs, stream and
watershed area preservations and I'd like to support a tax reform of a 1 percent tax on any
new purchase for homes which is not a first-time Hawaii buyer. So if you buy a house
for 4.5 million, you know, you pay 1 percent of that in taxes. You can afford that. One
can afford that. I'd like to say right here, across the street you know, the Ueokas applied
for all the community plan, zoning change blah blah blah to do their single-family
upgrade. If you actually look right next door to them there's a little house that's running
a whole commercial business out of them and I'm sure they haven't gotten a zoning
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change. So you have, you know, different zoning issues occurring within neighborhoods,
different uses, vacation rentals, hotels, et cetera, et cetera., which are contributing to the
disharmony in our community tax system.
I would like to bring up now roads and park maintenance. With the roads I'd like to see a
reduction in pesticide and herbicide use and an increase in low maintenance planting.
With the Department of Planning and the zoning this brings up the Baldwin
BeachlMontana Condominium Project. When employees don't do their job, they should
be reassigned to a different job and have their pay reduced. Ron Sandate, the Zoning
Enforcement Officer on County time went into the Public Works Department and got
those permits reissued using Mr. Almer's checking account on County time when he had
been assigned to issue violations. This is wrong. He should have been fired. Of course,
I brought that up to everybody. Charlie Jencks who reissued, reissued the plan review
waivers, Matt who no longer works there, Mac Aquinde who is still giving out SM5
permits. He should be fired. John Min and Aaron Shinmoto for not doing his zoning
enforcement work.
Okay, I wanna ask you, because of all these, this negligence, you're gonna actually have
to increase the amount of money that the Mayor asked for, for the shoreline property
acquisition.
Also, in the last thing for my last minute, all drainage improvements that are done by the
County, if they're not already surrounded by established neighborhoods, should be
co-paid by the surrounding developers. That the County should not pay for drainage
upgrades for vacant land areas, or like even for this Paia, you know, the Paia bypass,
which is gonna directly benefit, you know, the new shopping mall that's going in up on
Baldwin Avenue.
And then the bikeway, the bike companies should definitely have a percentage of their
income go towards the bike path programs, because none of the money right now is
coming into the County from the bike programs. It goes to the PUC and the Department
of Transportation, and the County doesn't get any money from any of those companies
that clog up our roads. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Hemming. Members, any questions for the testifier? Hearing
none, thank you for your testimony. Debra Merle, and you'll be followed by Marian
Zajac.
MS. MERLE: Hi my name is Debra Merle, and I have lived near the top of Piiholo Road in
Olinda for the past 25 years. I would like to thank Mike Molina for coming to our Olinda
Association meeting and helping us to understand that it's unrealistic to ask you for the
money to repave all of Piiholo Road. So I wanted to be specific and ask you if you could
appropriate funds for the half, from about the half-mile marker to two and a half mile
marker because I think that's the most dangerous part of it. And as my neighbors have
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said, you know, its dangerous, the potholes, but mostly if you could drive it yourself,
you'd just see what we're all talking about. Thanks a lot.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Merle. Members, any questions? Hearing none, thank you
very much for your testimony. Marian Zajac followed by Gregg Blue.
MS. ZAJAC: Hi, thank you for coming out again, listening to a request that most of you heard
me say something about before, a year ago. I'm a resident of Haiku. I'm currently
chairing the Main Street, Haiku Main Street Committee. I'm also Vice-President of the
Haiku Community Association, and I'm coming here to ask you to support the funding
for the Tri-Isle Resource Center. Haiku is struggling to maintain what it's got. The
special ness [sic] about it.
For those of you who braved the rain and came out last month to the Ho 'olaulea and
Reunion, I know some of you were there. You saw how many people came out from our
community to celebrate what's special about it. Nine hundred people showed up for the
luau to celebrate Haiku. The historical stuff, the pictures that we saw, that these people
of our community who came back to visit who lived here a long time ago and who still
live here, you know, it's a treasure that's just too precious to throwaway.
As members of the Community Association, we don't have the knowledge, the ability,
the time to preserve what needs to be preserved in Haiku. I work, I'm a mother, we have
a farm. I squeak in what little time I can to, you know, to do things like this for Haiku,
and I do it because it's worth it. The services that the Main Street Association provides
to us is the most cost-effective way to provide the support. If we had to hire this for each
community, if Haiku had to go out and hire the services that they can provide to us to
help us come up with a strategic plan, there's no way, you know. Our Haiku Community
Association has a budget of about $3,000 a year, so obviously that's not going to get us
anywhere. We really need you to support this organization so that they can support us, so
that hopefully, you know, 50 years from now, another reunion, there'll be just as many
people. And they'll be able to say that our time has been well spent, and Haiku is still a
place worth spending our time. And hopefully for my son's sake, for my grandchildren
some day, for, you know, they'll have a place where they can still be proud to live and
call home, and there'll be some remnant of our community left for them to enjoy. So
thank you again for your time.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. If you can, please state your name for the record.
MS. ZAJAC: Oh, I'm sorry. Marian Zajac.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Zajac. Member, any questions? Hearing none, thank you for
your testimony this evening. Gregg Blue and following Mr. Blue is Leslie Bruce.
MR. BLUE: My name is Gregg Blue, a long time resident of Haiku, and I am president of the
Haiku Community Association. I want to just ditto everything that Marian just said.
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There's been a lot of, you know, interesting comments here tonight asking you folks who
sit up there to listen to what us folks down here are, you know, bringing up to you so you
can see what's really going on in the community. I think that you are somewhat removed
in where you sit on the Council from the day-to-day life of most people that live here and
that comes with the job. And that's why we're all there trying to tell you what's really
going on in the community. We are losing Haiku. I think more properties for sale in
Haiku now are above the million-dollar mark then are below it. In fact, that is a fact.
When I testified before you last year, I think it was 600,000. There was more above
600,000 now there's more properties and empty land more than a million dollars then
there are below it. So what's happening again is the fabric of the community is getting,
you know, dilated. And I mean we're just trying to hold on to what we've got here.
Marian did some tremendous work with the Haiku Reunion this year. It was just a stellar
event, and I just can't stress enough, you know, I mean there's all this money going to all
these places. Big money going to a lot of places, and we're asking for little money. And
there's a lot of people asking for little money, and what I'd like you folks to realize is that
your biggest bang for the buck is to give the money to all these people that come here and
tell you, you know, we just need this much and we just need that much. That's where it's
gonna really make the biggest difference, you know, not in one and a half million dollars
toward some golf course or, I mean golf revenue that I saw, that, you know, the County is
appropriating. Not so much in the Visitors Bureau because we got the visitors. We are
over-stretched. So by spending and granting all these little, you know, amounts that, of
course, add up to much larger one, you are going to do something that's gonna help keep
Maui, Maui and keep Hawaii, Hawaii so that the people that live here can continue to live
here. And when the people that come here to visit, they don't see the trash conditions our
parks are in. I mean, even in third world countries they got bathrooms better than the
ones we have, and they keep 'em cleaner. I mean I used to clean bathrooms
professionally and I'm ashamed of the bathrooms at Hookipa Park. I'm ashamed. I feel
like going down there with my Ajax and a scrub brush myself. I mean it's a disgrace,
okay, to say the least. So, yeah, I mean try going down there sometime. So, anyway, my
main point is, is to fund these people, fund these, you know, little manini things that
when they're added all up together are the reason that people came to live here. It's the
reason that people that come to visit Maui came here, whether they're going to end up
seeing it or not, and it provides aloha. And as far as the property tax goes, I'm fortunate
enough to own a few properties in Haiku that I've collected over the years. I don't raise
rents. I rent out long term. Okay, my taxes doubled and when I called, you know, the
County, Joy said to me, oh, I know that house you just renovated on West Kuiaha, but we
haven't had a chance to come out and assess it yet. They did, of course, you know,
double the tax on the land, and I'm not complaining about paying the taxes. Okay, I'm
happy to pay the taxes. I want something back for' em. Okay. I want something back
for my taxes, and the least that the Council and the Administration can do is fund these
things that, you know, these people need, so that they can get on with their lives. They
can continue to live here and the playing field has to be leveled. It really has to be
leveled.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Blue.
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MR. BLUE: Okay.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any questions for Mr. Blue? Hearing none, thank you very much
for your testimony. Leslie Bruce.
MS. BRUCE: Good evening. My name is Leslie Bruce. I live in Hana and for many years our
family owns a place on the top of Piiholo Road and Olinda Road at the border with the
Haleakala Ranch. I'm talking about the road that leads from Piiholo Road to the rain
forest, Kahakapao Road. It leads to the new Piiholo Reservoir, and that Kahakapao
Road, when they put in the Piiholo Reservoir, they paved a piece of the road, and the
most dangerous curve has been chewed up by all the heavy equipment, and they did not
pave the most dangerous curve on that road. But what I want you really to do is to take
out the guardrail they put in that made it impossible for people to pass on some of those
corners. If the guardrail is removed, all the Blue Gum Eucalyptus trees will prevent
anybody from falling into the gulch. But the guardrail made the road too narrow for two
cars to pass, and I've witnessed accipents at that point and the County put in that
guardrail. It would be very cheap to remove it and make it safe again on Kahakapao
Road. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Bruce. Members, questions? Hearing none, thank you very
much. Is there anybody else here this evening that has not testified that would like to
testify? Now is your opportunity to come forward. You need to let us know you want to
testify. No, I'm sorry ma'am. If I let you, then everybody else is going to have an equal
chance to do the same. So you can approach anyone of us after the meeting. Is there
anybody else here that has not testified that would like an opportunity?

.. .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..
CHAIR KANE: Seeing none, thank you very much, ladies and gentlemen, for allowing us to be
here and we will take ... oh, oh, he's saying thank you. And we want to thank all of you
for allowing us to come into the community and take your comments into serious
consideration. This meeting is adjourned ... (gavel) . ..

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS. {excused: Anderson}
ACTION:

ADJOURN:

DEFER pending further discussion.

8:50 p.m.
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